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| am pleased to share with you once again the progress that Council has made during the past year. We have established
some complex multi-year planning priorities, many of which included significant community consultation. While planning is
important, it is having the capacity to take action that is critical, and this past year we have once again achieved a good mix of

planning and action.

As a Director of the Federation of Municipalities (FCM), a common theme heard across Canada is the problem of aging
infrastructure. Although we have our challenges, | am pleased to say the plans we have put in place, coupled with the
progress we are making in addressing our infrastructure deficit, puts Nelson out front. This is not the case across the country
where many communities have lost control of their public infrastructure because they could no longer afford the maintenance
necessary. This is one of many reasons that we feel investing in our infrastructure is so important.

We invested almost $8,000,000 in capital in 2010. This includes $4,800,000 on our utilities (water, sewer and hydro);,
$1,200,000 on roads, sidewalks, bridges and storm, $1,300,000 on equipment, vehicles, technology and buildings and finally
$650,000 on parks. Some of the highlights include the library renovations, the new Davies Street Park, the Baker Street Bridge
and the Nelson Hydro Downtown conversion. In addition to this, we continue with day-to-day upgrades and replacement of
water and sewer mains, the sewage treatment plant, hydro poles and transformers, and repairs to roads and sidewalks.

In 2010 Council also approved four important planning documents that will guide the community into the future. These are
the Path to 2040 Sustainability Strategy, the Active Transportation Plan, the Affordable Housing Strategy and the Corporate
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan. In 2011 Council approved the Sustainable Waterfront and Downtown Master Plan and will
be receiving the Community Climate and Energy Plan and the Sanitary Sewer Master Plan soon.

| am very pleased to note that Council, staff and the community are actively working towards the goals in these plans. Many
steps were taken toward the goals of the Active Transportation Plan, including the alignment of our sidewalk replacement plan
and our sidewalk snow ploughing routes, a provision for the extension of the waterfront pathway in proposed new
developments and the use of grant funds to improve connections to the BNR, create new sidewalks from LVR to Selkirk
College and add new sidewalks and trails on lower Baker Street. The sustainability matrix from the Path to 2040 Sustainability
Plan has become an integral part of our process when we are considering new development, and other proposals and policy
development. The Housing Strategy supported a funding application by the Canadian Mental Health Association - Kootenays
which received $3,200,000 in funding to create 33 new subsidized housing units in Nelson. The Selkirk College Dorm
renovation project will also deliver 100 new beds. We have implemented a number of the recommendations in the Corporate
GHG Plan and we are realizing energy savings in our building and reducing GHGs. Developers are already aligning their
developments with goals of the recently adopted Sustainable Waterfront and Downtown Master Plan.

Last year | reported on our many partnerships with the Province, the Federal Government, the RDCK and various community
organizations that have led to the realization of important community goals. Two very important projects, the Kootenay Lake
Hospital new Emergency Room and the Selkirk College Dorms, are both well underway and will be completed during 2011.
We have been working hard with our Regional District colleagues on waste management and we are making exciting progress.
The RDCK has now acquired a new site for the Nelson Transfer Station. This is one step that will both improve waste
management operations throughout the RDCK, and, just as importantly, return this valuable piece of waterfront land back to
the City.

All of these important planning documents have led to policy development and provided greater clarity for Council, staff, and
the community, which in turn will help us determine appropriate budgets, priorities and fees.

None of this would have been possible without the dedication of our employees, our many
community volunteers, service clubs, partner organizations and the business community. |
would like to thank all of you for your on going commitment to this wonderful community

of ours.

oocley
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Mayor John Dooley

Bob Adams Robin Cherbo Deb Kozak

Kim Charlesworth Donna Macdonald Margaret Stacey

An elected Council comprised of a Mayor and six Councillors governs the City of Nelson. Councillors are elected for
three year terms and each member of Council represents the City at large. The Local Government Act and the
Community Charter give Council the authority to set budgets, levy taxes and establish policies to guide the growth,
development and operation of the City for the benefit and protection of its citizens.

The powers of the Mayor and Council are exercised through the adoption of resolutions or the enacting of bylaws at
Council meetings. Members of the public are welcome to attend open council meetings. See the City website at
www.nelson.ca for information regarding dates and times of meetings.
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Committees established by Act/Bylaw w/Council voting membership

Capitol Theatre

Community Heritage Commission

Cultural Development Commission
Emergency Program Executive (Provincial)
Library Board (Library Act)

Nelson Economic Development Partnership
Police Board (Police Act)

RDCK Board (Local Government Act)
Recreation & Aquatic Commission #5

Youth Centre Advisory Committee

Standing Committees (established by Mayor)

Grievance Committee
Nelson Municipal Airport

Council Liaisons/Portfolios

Advisory Planning Commission

AFKO

Chamber of Commerce

Economic Development/Business/Tourism/Events
Education (SD #8, Selkirk College)
Environment

Healthy Communities

IZUSHI Friendship, Baie-St-Paul, Onagawa
Nelson Business Association

Nelson & District Arts Council
Nelson Electric Tramway

Nelson Committee on Homelessness
Nelson Pilot’s Association

Parks

Recreation and Youth

Seniors’ Services

Social Planning

Sports Council, GOGA

Touchstones

Treaty Advisory

Tri-Cities

2010 Winter Olympics Torch Relay

Appointee/Alternate

Councillor Charlesworth/Macdonald
Councillor Charlesworth/Macdonald
Councillor Macdonald/Charlesworth

Mayor Dooley, Councillors Cherbo & Adams
Councillor Macdonald/Charlesworth
Councillors Kozak & Stacey

Mayor Dooley

Mayor Dooley, Councillor Macdonald
Councillors Kozak & Stacey

Councillors Stacey & Kozak

Councillors Cherbo & Adams
All of Council

Councillor Adams/Stacey

Councillors Macdonald & Charlesworth
Councillors Kozak & Stacey

Councillors Kozak & Stacey/Cherbo
Councillors Cherbo & Adams
Councillors Charlesworth/Adams/Macdonald
Councillors Cherbo & Adams
Councillors Macdonald & Charlesworth
Councillors Kozak & Stacey

Councillors Macdonald & Charlesworth
Councillor Cherbo

Councillors Cherbo & Adams
Councillor Cherbo

Councillors Kozak & Stacey

Councillors Kozak & Stacey

Councillors Cherbo & Adams
Councillors Cherbo & Adams
Councillors Kozak & Stacey

Councillors Macdonald & Charlesworth
Councillor Adams

Mayor Dooley/Councillor Adams
Councillors Kozak & Stacey
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Mayor and
Council

Nelson Library

Chief Librarian

Nelson City Police City Manager
Chief Constable Acting CFO (to Aug 2011)
Dan Maluta ret (Jan 2011) |
Waynezl-(l)(lllla;nd (Jan Kevin Cormack < :: June Stockdale

| 1 1 1
Chief Financial Director of Fire Chief Nelson Hydro
Officer Operations General Manager
Linda Tynan (Dec
2010);Colin McClure Allen Fillion Simon Grypma Alex Love
(August 2011)
Municipal Officers 2010
Chief Administrative Officer.........ccousrumnrisanns Kevin Cormack
Corporate Officer......cccccvrrriirmccemrnreessscennnnnas Frances Long
Chief Financial Officer.......ccccursemrrrssmnnrsssnnnnas Colin McClure (Aug 2011)
Approving Officer........ Dave Wahn
Municipal Auditors..........ccccccmeeeennnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn, Berg, Naqvi, Lehmann
Municipal Bankers..........mmeeeeeeeeeeeeee. Bank of Montreal
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It was back in 2009 that Council first initiated some very complex planning projects. The path was
originally set by completing an initial assessment as to the City’s and the community’s readiness to
engage in these in-depth planning exercises. A small working group identified some initial focus
areas and staff went out and secured grant funding to provide the necessary resources to get these
projects completed.

I certainly never envisioned at the time that it would take almost a full three years to complete
these important planning exercises. Over this time we had extensive community consultation
processes, we worked with some excellent consultants and our staff and Council went beyond the
call of duty to ensure we were getting the very best product possible. All involved recognized that it
is vitally important that we have a long-term vision of where the community is going over the next
10, 20, 30 years.

I would like to thank all of our community volunteers for the hundreds of hours that they put in to complete these planning
exercises. We had broad based participation in the plans and I am confident that they reflect the community’s values. I also
want to give a special thanks to our Development Services and Sustainability department who carried the bulk of the load in
keeping these projects on track.

In 2010, Council approved the four important planning documents: Path to 2040 Sustainability Strategy; the Active
Transportation Plan; the Corporate Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan and the Affordable Housing Strategy. Three other
planning documents will be approved in 2011: the Sustainable Waterfront and Downtown Plan; the Community Climate and
Energy Plan and the Sanitary Sewer Master Plan.

Couple this with the recent update of the Official Community Plan in 2008 and the completion of the Water Master Plan
back in 2007, and the City now has the major building blocks in place. The final holes will be filled in 2011/12 with the
completion of a Facilities Maintenance Plan; an Information Technology Plan and the Storm Water Plan. The Regional
District is also in the process of completing a Recreation Master Plan for the Greater Nelson area.

The fruits of this solid planning are already paying off, the City has a very good reputation with the Province for our planning
and this translates into grant funding. Many important recent projects have been funded through grants, including
improvements to our walking and cycling routes, movement forward on the waterfront and downtown plan; and upgrades to
our water and sewer infrastructure.

The City has a solid plan in place to address our infrastructure deficit in utilities (water, sewer and hydro) and we are
making the necessary long-term investments to ensure these critical community assets remain in public hands. We are
already seeing the development community embrace the goals of the waterfront and downtown plan and the City is aligning
its spending priorities with the vision as articulated in these very important planning documents.

All of these major initiatives made 2010 another extremely busy year. We also moved forward on numerous smaller
initiatives such as developing a new park at Davies Street, developing the geo-thermal project for the 10th Street Campus
dorms and the wildfire mitigation work in our interface areas to name just a few.

And of course, we continue with our day to day operations such as: snow clearing, maintaining parks, providing public
safety, library services, a youth centre and all of the various other services that are so vital to the City. It requires a

tremendous team of dedicated and committed City employees to make this all happen and I would like to thank them all for
their outstanding contribution to this City of ours that we are so very proud of!

Kevin Cormack, City Manager
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Key Objectives Performance Measure Progress to date (August 2011)

1. Sustainability Council approves a sustainability The Path to 2040 Sustainability Strategy was
Plan plan to give broad direction which approved by Council in 2010. The planiis a
then becomes the overarching comprehensive approach to sustainability
planning document; all other which includes ten core focus areas. A
planning documents are consistent | sustainability matrix was also developed
with the sustainability plan. which assists staff and Council in their

decision making, budget priorities and policy
development. This plan was integral to the
development of other planning documents
including the Sustainable Waterfront and
Downtown Plan and the Community Climate
and Energy Plan.

2. Transportation e Council approve an active e The Active Transportation Plan approved
transportation plan by Council in 2010 and a number of
improvements have been made to the
City’s walking and cycling routes—a key
recommendation in the report.

e (P Stationhouse acquired and
supports the transit and active e Phase 1 of the renovations to the CP
transportation system Stationhouse have been completed

including the washrooms, and sidewalk

upgrades to Cottonwood Park.

e Trail improvements completed e Two access point to the BNR trail were
completed in 2010, one at the top of
Stanley Street and one through Davies
Street Park. The access trails were
completed with grant funding.

3. Climate Change | ¢ Complete and implement the e The plan has been completed and
corporate GHG emission approved by Council, targeted reductions
reduction plan are a reduction of GHG of 25% by 2012 ;

funds have been budgeted and a number
of energy reduction initiatives have been
implemented.

e Afuel load reduction study was
e Identify and implement completed in 2009 and implementation is
adaptation strategies ongoing.
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Key

Performance Measure

Progress to date (August 2011)

Objectives
4, Waterfront Approval from Council. The Sustainable Waterfront and Downtown Plan
Masterplan approved by Council in June 2011. Some of the key
recommendations in the plan include better
integration of the downtown and waterfront;
encouraging density on the waterfront and
encouraging more residential downtown; Baker
Street remaining the economic hub of the
community; increasing the accessibility of the
waterfront by extending the waterfront pathway and
creating two new anchor parks. We are already
seeing the goals of the plan being embraced by the
development community.
5. Housing Identify the role of Council in e The Affordable Housing Strategy approved by
housing Council in 2010.
Encourage coordination e Council established the Nelson Housing Forum,
between those organizations the group is active and this has improved the
that are involved in housing communication between housing providers in
Nelson.
EnC(?l:Jrage the Qevelopment of e A number of private developments were
additional housing options by : ) )

) ; completed or are in the planning stage: these
both the private and public include smaller multi-family units; a new phased
sector town house development and the upgrade of the

10th Street student residences and a new 33 unit
subsidized housing development funded through
BC Housing.
6. Regional Improve regional service e Library—regional feasibility study completed.
Planning delivery Referendum done and was successful in two
. electoral areas.
Services

e  Skatepark— feasibility study to locate the
outdoor park at NDCC approved and fund raising
underway.

e Central Waste—the RDCK has identified an
alternative location for the Nelson Transfer
Station and funds are being budgeted for
development. The Sustainable Waterfront and
Downtown Plan has identified the current site as
a future park.

e Nelson and Area Directors meetings have been
ongoing and are focused on joint services.
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The City of Nelson is located on the west arm of Kootenay Lake.
Incorporated as a City on March 18, 1897 under the "Speedy"
Incorporation of Towns Act”, Nelson continues to be the
government, financial, trading and educational centre of the
Central Kootenay Region. Nelson, the Heritage Capital of the
Kootenays, boasts in excess of over 150 registered heritage
buildings. Self-guided, heritage walking tours and driving tours
are available on a year-round basis.

Nelson's historical buildings have attracted a number of movies to
be produced in the City, and Nelson is still often scouted by
Hollywood for other movies.

The Nelson Electric Tramway Society operates a completely
restored streetcar on the City's waterfront.

8 Nelson is located in the Selkirk Mountains and is ideally located
for recreation. An 18-hole golf course is located within the
municipal boundaries. A first-class ski hill is 30 minutes from the
downtown core. The world-renowned Kokanee Glacier is within
sight of Nelson and a 30-minute drive away. Many other
recreational opportunities exist nearby. Kootenay Lake offers

fishing, sailing and hundreds of beautiful beaches.

Although the population of the City of Nelson is only 9,923, it is central to a trading area in excess of 25,000. The residents
of Nelson have come to expect amenities that are normally only found in a community much larger than Nelson.

Nelson experienced economic decline during the early eighties. Since then, the population has grown by an average of
over 2% per year to the current population. Much of the regional population growth is in the immediate rural areas
surrounding the municipal boundaries.

New electrical utility connections within and outside the municipal boundaries also indicate a 2% annual population
growth in the immediate area. Many of the new residents are people who are fleeing the urban centres but who are still
looking for the services provided in much larger cities.

Clean drinking water, fresh air and the pristine Kootenay Lake contribute to the City's high quality of life. Nelson has no
polluting industries nor does it have a large industrial tax base. In an effort to continue economic diversification, small
businesses are establishing a new economic base in the Nelson area. There were approximately 1,039 business licences
issued in 2010.

Nelson has, for years, been an educational centre for the Kootenay Region. Presently, Selkirk College offers post-
secondary education, their is a Waldorf School as well as a Chinese Medicine School.

Nelson is rich in cultural life and provides high-quality theatre drama, music and dance programs. Many local artists
produce their products in Nelson, some selling locally and others selling across Canada and internationally. Nelson hosts
several cultural and musical festivals annually.

Nelson, due to its scenery, moderate climate, amenities and unpolluted environment has developed a quality of life that is
attractive to new residents and businesses.
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Kevin Cormack, BComm, CA., City Manager

The City Manager’s office supports Council’s strategic planning efforts and oversees the administration of the City, its
officers and employees. This department provides recommendations to Council that reflect facts, options and
professional opinion pertaining to issues considered by Council and developing in the community.

The City Manager’s office takes the lead role in managing the implementation of policy direction established by Council. It
provides leadership and direction to all City departments and operations.

The Development Services, Operations, Fire and Nelson Hydro department heads report directly to the City Manager.
Management of Human Resources is a component of the City Manager’s office.

2010 Highlights

e  One of the key focuses for 2010 was launching three key planning processes: the overall sustainability plan, the
downtown and waterfront plan and the community energy plan. Each of these plans are guiding documents for
the City and the community. This was a huge undertaking by all involved.

e  We restructured in 2010 giving new responsibilities and opportunities for growth to some of our staff. We
created a new department: Development Services and Sustainability that is responsible for planning,
building inspection and sustainability. Corporate administration was restructured to allow for a stronger
focus on the legislative side to ensure our policies, bylaws, contracts etc. are being updated in a timely and
proactive fashion.

e  Council continued to invest in the City’s core assets with capital expenditures of $8M. We received competitive
pricing across our projects which has resulted in a number of the capital projects being delivered under budget.

Departmental Goals

Council Portfolio Priority Setting

Support the growth of Council’s approach to working with community groups. Council has established the following
Council portfolios: Arts & Culture; Environment; Economic Development; Healthy Communities and Recreation and
Youth. The goal is for the councillors involved in the portfolio to have an overall view of the various initiatives that
community groups are involved with and to take a strategic approach to supporting community initiatives. Portfolios
will create a vehicle to allow the community and Council to work together, strategically, on important community
initiatives.

Staff development
We continue to invest in our employees through professional development and other training opportunities.
Document Management

The department has embarked on a records management project with projected implementation in 2012
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The Corporate Services function includes many departments including Finance, Information Technology, Legislative
Services, Administration, Development Services and Community Services.

Corporate Services also includes the functions of the Corporate Officer. The Corporate Officer facilitates the business of
Council by preparing minutes and agendas, preparing, reviewing and providing advice on municipal bylaws, and initiating
the follow up action to Council Meetings.

In August 2011 the City welcomed Colin McClure to the Chief Financial Officer position.

City Manager
1
1 | | 1 1
M i Manager of
ad 1ENgEr of a hief Fi B Development Services
) 'n}lrjcl'Strg;M? Chief Financial Officer {Planning & Building Human Resources ‘Youth Centre
erislative Services Inspection)
Administrative Planner &
Ascistants = Accountant/Collector | fe=  Development
Technician
a Information |_| Manager of Finance & Building
Technology Purchasing Inspectors

Finance Section

Linda Tynan - Chief Financial Officer (December 2010)
Colin McClure - Chief Financial Officer (August 2011)
Jeanette McCarvell - Accountant/Collector

Suzanne Rorick - Manager of Finance and Purchasing

The Finance Department is responsible for the financial management of the City’s assets. The Finance department's
primary responsibility is the planning, implementation and monitoring of the City's five year financial plan for operating
expenditures and capital expenditure plan. Staff must work closely with all other departments as well as the Nelson
Police, the Nelson Municipal Library and the Nelson and District Youth Centre.

Functions of the department include levying and collection of taxes, administration of the annual tax sale, collection of
water, sewer, garbage and hydro rates, processing of accounts payable, parking control and payroll. This section is also
responsible for purchasing, procurement and inventory control.

Legislative Services Section

Frances Long - Manager of Legislative and Administrative Services and Corporate Officer

Legislative Services ensures Council is provided with relevant information from City staff, committees and the general
public. It provides the public with information related to activities of Council, ensures meeting and agenda material is
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complete and provides the necessary information for decision making. It is responsible for the preparation of bylaws and
agreements. Additional responsibilities include maintenance of the City’s policy manual. This section of the department
executes legal documents, handles insurance claims and responds to correspondence and inquiries.

In addition, Legislative Services is responsible for carrying out procedures for local government elections as required under
the provisions of the Community Charter, and is the Freedom of Information administrator for City operations.

This department currently also includes the Information Technology section, which is responsible for the City’s information
and data processing needs, and also provides maintenance of the City’s inventory of personal computers, now in excess of
85 units, located in various venues.

Development Services

Dave Wahn - Manager of Development Services & Sustainability
Dallas Johnson - Planner (to May 2011)

Daphne Powell - Planner (Aug 2011)

Linda Watkin - (to May 2011)

Shelley Miller - (September 2011)

Bernie Zimmer - Chief Building Official

John Southam - Building Official

The planning section is responsible for the City’s current planning and
development (including the processing of rezoning, development permits,
development variance permits), environmental planning and long-term land
use planning (including updating of the Official Community Plan), property
records maintenance, Advisory Planning Commission and Community
Heritage Commission.

The Planning Section includes the front-line staff for all development queries
and ensures that property owners and developers' needs are met in a timely
fashion within the guidelines provided by the City's policies and bylaws.

The City of Nelson’s long-term vision recognizes the importance of planned
growth and development that balances the City's respect for its heritage and
traditional values and provide opportunity for modern development. The

planning section is leading the work on community-wide sustainability.

The Building Inspection section is responsible for the administration and enforcement of the Building Code and regulating
bylaws governing building, plumbing, signage, zoning and heritage preservation. This section scrutinises all building plans
to ensure that the structural integrity, fire safety and plumbing are all in compliance with the Building Code and municipal
bylaws.

Building Section Staff assists the public in understanding the relevant Provincial and municipal legislation governing
construction. The department is also responsible for enforcement of the Business Licence and the Untidy Premise Bylaws.

Building Section Staff manages the on-going maintenance of 310 Ward Street and is coordinating all corporate GHG
projects for the site.
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Corporate Services Department Achievements 2010
e Implementation of updated purchasing policy
e Implementation of new cashiering software
e Completion of the Path to 2040 Sustainability Strategy
e Completion of the City of Nelson Active Transportation Plan
e Completion of the Affordable Housing Strategy
e Issuance of 174 Building permits valued at $18M
e Review of 5 Subdivision applications

e Review of 76 Development applications (variances/development permits/rezoning)

Corporate Service Department Goals 2011/2012

2011 Completion of SUSTAINABLE WATERFRONT AND DOWNTOWN MASTER PLAN

2011 Completion of COMMUNITY CLIMATE AND ENERGY PLAN

2011 Completion of a new Subdivision Bylaw

2011 -2012 Policy Updates to Official Community Plan and Zoning Bylaw as Per Community Climate and

Energy Plan, Sustainable Waterfront-Downtown Master Plan, Affordable Housing Strategy
and the Active Transportation Plan

2011/2012 Records Management System implemented organization wide
2012 Completion of new Zoning Bylaw
2011/2012 Updating of many out of date bylaws
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Nelson and District Youth Centre
Christine Schmidt - Youth Centre Manager N
The Nelson & District Youth Centre (NDYC) was established as a department of

the City of Nelson in December 1997. The centre's mission statement is:

"Creating a safe, accepting and empowering community where all youth can interact and access a variety of activities
they need and enjoy". In addition to this mission statement, NDYC's objectives aim to target a diverse group of youth
with programs to serve the developmental, recreational, employment, and cultural needs of Nelson and area youth. .

NDYC also operates the Youth Employment Resource Centre (YERC). The resource centre offers employment services
to youth age 15-30. The Youth Employment Resource Centre offers one-on-one assistance, workshops, a resource
library, computer services, and internet access for employment searches. The employment centre is supported by the
Ministry of Housing and Social Development, Employment Labour Market Services. The Youth Centre’s programs can
be found at www.nelson.ca and the Youth Employment Resource Centre website is www.yerc.ca.

Department Achievements 2010

e 15,786 total visits to the Nelson and District Youth Centre
e 1,390 Hours of volunteer contribution

e Great staff

e Youth Gardens

e large scale mural involving 12 youth artists

e Helmet awareness calendar

e Ramp rebuild and resurfacing

Department Goals 2011 / 2012
e  Planting the youth gardens at the beginning of the growing season
e Diversifying NDYC revenues by managing the Nelson City Campground
e  Food Security/partnerships target 2012
o Delivering a Skills Link program funded by Service Canada, January 2012
e  Healthy lifestyles for youth, healthy eating workshops for youth

e Improvements to the Jam (Music) Room
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Allen Fillion - Director of Engineering and Operations

The City of Nelson Operations Department, located at the City Works and Utilities Complex on Lakeside Drive, oversees all
outside Municipal services within the City. These services include Transportation, Engineering, Water Utility, Sewer Utility,
Public Works, Garage & Transit, Parks, Airport and City Buildings.

[ Director of Engineering & Operations ]

Manager of Operations Manager of Engineering
(vacant)

[ Office Administrator ]

Superintendent Garage and Transit

Utilities Supervisor

Public Works & Parks Supervisor
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Allen Fillion - Director of Engineering and Operations
Rob Nystrom - Manager of Engineering

Gil Bogaard - Utilities Supervisor

Barry Turner - Public Works, Parks Supervisor

Rodi DeVuono - Superintendant Garage and Transit

Responsible for the maintenance and construction of municipal roads,
sidewalks, bridges, storm drains, public wharfs, solid waste collection, and the
Mapping/CAD department. The department is also responsible for winter snow
removal and sanding City streets and selected sidewalks.

Provides engineering, drafting and survey information for Utility maintenance and new construction

The Mapping/CAD Department provides services to Nelson Hydro and City Administration as well as for the Public Works
Department.

Water and Sewer Utility

The Water Utility provides quality water through a gravity system supplied by three creeks: Five Mile, Anderson and Selous. The
city has been aggressively upgrading the system and has implemented a number of conservation measures.

The Sanitary Sewer Utility collects the raw sewage, and through a system of mains and five pump stations, transfers it to the
Sewage Treatment Plant. The city has a on-going capital program to renew the sanitary sewer infrastructure.

The Sewage Treatment Plant has provided secondary treatment since 2006. A number of additional upgrades have been done to
the plant over the past 5 years.

i
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Garage and Transit

The City's Garage maintains approximately 116 pieces of equipment for all departments. The City has established an
Equipment Replacement Reserve to fund the replacement, upgrade and purchase of additional equipment. The City of
Nelson operates one of the first established transit systems in the province. The Nelson streetcar system established in
1899 was the smallest system in the British Empire.

The transit system has operated continuously since that time. The City is the operator of the City transit system as well
as the Regional transit system, operating a total of 6 buses and offering service 6 days per week. Funding for Regional
services is provided by the Regional District of Central Kootenay and BC Transit. The City is partnered with BC Transit
for the operation of the Nelson Transit System with funding as provided by provincial legislation.

Parks & Recreation Facilities

The Parks and Recreational Facilities section is responsible for the maintenance of eleven municipal parks and playing
fields covering 23.7 hectares.

The City created a new 4.8ha park in partnership with the Provincial Government. Davies Street Park is located in Upper
Fairview and is a gateway to the extensive mountain bike network located in the mountains above Nelson.

As well as the municipal parks, this department maintains the flowers and trees in the downtown core area, and operates
the 45-acre Nelson cemetery, known as the Nelson Memorial Park.
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Highlights & Accomplishments 2010
Design for UV disinfection & hypochlorite generation system for Mt Station reservoir
Cemetery irrigation project completed
Baker Street Bridge crossing of Cottonwood Creek completed
City Parkade concrete deck repairs and resurfacing completed
Phased development of Davies Street Park and completion of two LocalMotion Pathway projects
Re-lined 1.2km of sanitary sewer pipe

Ventilation and process improvements at the Sewage Treatment Plant

Operations 2011 / 2012 Departmental Goals

To ensure clean, potable water to all residents of Nelson

- Continued Implementation of Water Master Plan

- To continue to upgrade the water distribution system through replacement of old distribution
- Compliancy with IHA water regulations

- Installation of UV disinfection & hypochlorite generation system at Mt Station reservoir

Investment in City facilities

- Concrete repair to Parkade

- Replacement of boiler systems in the Civic Arena and City Hall
- Develop facilities management plan

Complete Wastewater Master Plan

Continue program to reline sanitary pipes and divert storm water from the sanitary system
Continue developing the new Davies Street Park and Rosemont Park

Sanitary lift station upgrades

PRV upgrades
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Simon Grypma - Fire Chief

Bob Slade - Deputy Fire Chief

Nelson Fire & Rescue Services is responsible for the prevention, inspection, investigation, suppression, control and
extinguishment of fires and for the protection of life and property, including technical rescue operations and the
administration of first aid through the First Responder Program. Fire & Rescue Services is also responsible for the
identification of dangerous goods and taking appropriate actions based on the product.

The department provides a Fire Prevention Program as required in the regulatory provisions of the Fire Services Act and
the Fire Bylaw no. 3077. The department also conducts public education programs to inform the public on Wildfire and
urban residential fire safety issues. These issues include the promotion of the concept for a Fire Smart Community.

The department consists of a Fire Chief, Deputy Fire Chief, four Captains, six full-time Firefighters, a secretary/
dispatcher, and 20 Auxiliary Firefighters. In addition, the Nelson Fire Department also services an area of approximately
2000 residents through a contract with the Regional District of Central Kootenay.

Operations Goal

e To develop a comprehensive operations program in fire, rescue, medical and emergency management services designed
to ensure a high level of readiness through staffing levels, apparatus, facilities, personnel preparation and operational

guidelines.
Fire Prevention Goal

e To protect lives and property of the
public and emergency personnel
through inspections and application
of the BC Fire Services Act and Fire
Code, Nelson Fire By-law and the
National Fire Protection Association
Code and related documents. In
addition to inspections we will
educate the public through a well
balanced public education program
aimed at all levels of our community.
We will investigate all fires for cause

and determination to take a proactive approach in prevention.

Training Goal

e To continue to develop and implement a Fire Department Training Program to ensure highly trained efficient and
technical expertise for Nelson Fire personnel, with an emphasis on safety. Training will meet the standards and
certifications recognized by British Columbia Fire Services.

Safety Goal

e To continue to promote a safety attitude and create a safe work environment in accordance with NFPA 1500(Fire
Department Occupational Safety and Health Program).

Facilities Goal

e Maintain and upgrade the existing fire station to meet fire and life safety standards and to create a comfortable and
functional work environment for the members of the department.

Legislation & Recommended Practices

e  To review the Fire By-law and current contracts and complete outstanding operational guidelines, as well as continue

with pre-fire planning for all commercial buildings in conjunction with the newly updated Fire Inspection software.

2010 ANNUAL REPORT City of Nelson 24




Training Report

e  Captain Mike Daloise appointed as the new Training Officer.
e Organized and participated in a successful Interagency Cooperative Exercise Training Session in June with other
local emergency response departments

Outreach Program
e Developing Certified Live Fire Training Site at Selkirk College

All career members completed Company Officer 1 & 2 training
e  Training for auxiliary members included both practical and theory in preparation for the 2011 certification pro-
gram.

Fire Prevention Report

e  Captain Rick Maida was appointed as the new Fire Prevention Officer in 2010.

e The focus for 2010 has been on commercial properties within the City of Nelson and the development and com-
pletion of preplans for these premises.

e The Fire Prevention Officer attended the 2010 Fire Prevention Officers Association of BC annual conference in
Williams Lake.

City of Nelson - 2010 Calls - By Type
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Dan Maluta - Chief Constable (retired January 2011)
Wayne Holland - Chief Constable (January 2011)
Henry Paivarinta - Deputy Chief Constable

Nelson has one of the oldest police forces in the province, dating back to the City's first Council
meeting in 1897. Our police service is the only independent municipal force in the interior of
British Columbia.

The sworn and civilian men and women of the Nelson Police Department strive to provide a

SELSON POLIC

safe, crime-free community for citizens of all ages to learn, work and live in.

The City of Nelson provides funding for the Department, which is administered by the Police Board under the provisions of
the Police Act. The Police Board consists of six members, one of whom is appointed by Council and four by the Province,
with the Mayor serving as Chair. The Department is under the command of the Chief Constable, with one Deputy and a
total complement of twenty-one sworn officers.

The force is structured with two patrol teams, each with a Sergeant in charge, designated Beat Officers, two Detectives in
the GIS Section and a Community Policing officer. Also under command of the Chief Constable is the Bylaw Department,
consisting of three Bylaw Enforcement officers, a two-person Integrated Victim Services Unit, four full-time Police
Dispatchers and two administrative positions. The Department has four officers in seconded positions, both in the
Integrated Road Safety Unit (IRSU) and in the RCMP Integrated Border Enforcement Team (IBET).

Our officers remain very engaged at the patrol level, with one of the highest case burdens per member among the British
Columbia Municipal police forces. In the spirit of community policing in this thriving and diverse “core city,” the
Department deploys officers to proactively conduct downtown foot-patrols, and is engaged in a host of crime prevention
and youth mentoring programs. Our Vision is “Safe Community through Policing Excellence”.

Department Achievements 2010
®  Participation by four personnel in policing services for the 2010 Olympic Winter Games in Vancouver BC
®  Establishment of a partnership with the Nelson Rotary Daybreak Club to combat graffiti in our community

®  Establishment of a partnership with Crimestoppers BC to provide a centralized office at Nelson Police
Headquarters to efficiently serve the West Kootenay region

® |dentification of a new Chief Constable

Departmental Goals— 2011

e Development and implementation of a Five Year Strategic Plan

e  Development and implementation of various public order, street and traffic and
community safety bylaws along with a “Bylaw Adjudication” process

e  Development of a public order and criminal offence “Alternative Dispute
Resolution” process

e  Development of a Police Foundation, to fund initiatives and training that are not
normally funded by means of the annual policing budget

e  Empowering civilian staff to accomplish administrative tasks on behalf of police

personnel, to maximize the time operational officers are actually out in the
community
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Alex Love - General Manager
Mike Amos - Operations Manager
Doug Pickard - Line Manager

The City of Nelson was the first community with hydro power in British Columbia, commencing
service February 1, 1896. The City is the only municipality in BC with hydro generation that
services an area outside its municipal boundaries. Consequently, the rural area hydro service and
rates are subject to regulation by the British Columbia Utilities Commission.

Nelson Hydro is responsible for efficient generation, distribution, and sale of electrical energy. Nelson Hydro partners with
FortisBC on Power Sense programs to promote the conservation of electrical energy.

Nelson Hydro presently has over 9,800 customers, of which 58% are within the municipality. Total system load is now
approximately 165,000 MWh per year.

In 2010, Nelson Hydro transferred $2,100,000 in dividends to the General Revenue Fund.

The City operates the Bonnington falls generating facility which is a 15 MW hydro plant on the Kootenay River 14 KM west
of Nelson. The hydro plant has 4 operating generators producing 70% of the summer electrical energy needs and
approximately 43% of the winter energy requirements. In 2010 the plant produced approximately 86,000 MWh of energy.

Achievements in 2010

e  College Heating Project - Installation of geothermal heating system at 10th Street Campus dormitories.

e  Corporate Green House Emissions Reduction Planning - The City was recognized by the FCM for achieving
milestone 3 of the Partners in Climate Protection Plan

e Downtown Voltage conversion - civil work began with installation of underground systems and transformer pad
locations

e Design for Rosemont substation completed
e  Street Light Dimming pilot project

e  Regulatory - Nelson Hydro along with the other municipal utilities was successful in reducing a wholesale rate
increase from 22% down to 5%

Departmental Goals for 2011 -2012

IMPROVED RELIABILITY OF SYSTEM

- Complete the Downtown voltage conversion project
- Installation of System Reclosers

- Rebuild the Rosemont Substation

- Replace aging Harrop/Proctor submarine cable

- Complete meter replacement program

IMPROVED CUSTOMER SERVICE

- Investigate rate structure redesign to include inclining block rates.

NEW BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES
- Investigate the feasibility of a District Heating System.
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June Stockdale - Chief Librarian

NELSON MUNICIPAL LIBRARY

2010 was a year of tremendous growth and change at the Nelson Moe from e yeur fovary

Municipal Library. Circulation increased 4% over 2009 with 207,203
items borrowed and over 165,000 people crossing the doors of the
Library. We issued 1,609 new memberships, 72% to City residents,
18% to regional residents and 10% to other areas of the province.

We answered 18,884 reference questions or 363 questions per week,
and added 4,522 new items to the collections. People visited our
website over 8,000 times, performed close to 10,000 searches on our databases, and downloaded 1,648 audio and e-books
from the website.

There were two major initiatives undertaken in 2010. The first was the building expansion project which brought the lower
level of the library into active use for the children’s collections and programs, and increased the library area by 5,500 sq ft to
just over 12,000 sq ft in total. This major undertaking was made possible through project funding provided by the City of
Nelson, Columbia Basin Trust, Regional District of Central Kootenay, provincial and federal grants, and a major fundraising
initiative carried out by the Library Board and Friends of the Library. Over $150,000 was raised locally including a significant
donation on behalf of William and Isabel Ramsay to name the children’s library in their honour. Thanks to all the wonderful
citizens from our community who worked on our behalf both on the project, as well as on fundraising behind the scenes,
donating a portion of their service fees, or making a monetary donation to the project.

The other significant achievement was the successful referendum outcome in RDCK Areas F and H South, which allows
universal access to library service to the people from these areas. The revenue from inclusion of these areas into library
service enabled the library to better meet the high demand for service. The funds realized will be used to increase staff and
open hours at the main facility, add additional items to the collection, and provide better outreach service to the more
remote rural areas.

We continue to run a variety of programs for preschoolers, school aged children and teens, host numerous author visits and
information sessions, and provide service to seniors at Mountain Lakes through a monthly outreach program. Our
partnership with Columbia Basin Alliance for Literacy continues as we assist with hosting drop-in times at the Learning Place,
co-sponsor the Mother Goose and Books Everywhere programs. We netted over $5,000 at our annual Oysters, Authors and
Ale fundraiser this year which was an enjoyable and informative literacy building evening for the community.

Thanks to our wonderful staff, dedicated volunteers, Friends of the Library, and our visionary Board of Directors, all of whom
contribute to the overall success of the Nelson Municipal Library. Thanks also to Nelson City Council for their ongoing
support and commitment to this important community service.

2009 2010 %

Change
Circulation 199,620 207,203 +3.8%
E-book circulation 10,993 11,620 +6%
City members 5,542 6,506 +17%
RDCK members 1,531 1,673 +9%
Reference questions 14,638 18,884 +29%
New items added to 7,010 4,522 -35%
collection
In person visits 167,837 165,757 -1%
Public Computers 26,490 23,946 -9%
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Nelson Civic Centre

Built in the depression, the Nelson Civic Centre was the first of its
kind in Western Canada. The complex included 2 ice rinks, a curling
rink, 2 gymnasiums and a 700-seat theatre. With the opening of the
new multi-purpose community centre, the large rink in the Civic
Centre has been turned over to a non-profit society (Sports Council)
while the small rink was converted to an indoor soccer facility in
2007. The curling rink is leased to the Nelson Curling Club..

Capitol Theatre

This 420-seat performing arts centre is a restored theatre originally
built in the 1920's. A dedicated volunteer group raised funds and
renovated the theatre which opened in 1988.

The City leases the theatre to the Capitol Theatre Restoration Society
and also partially funds its operations.

Nelson & District Youth Centre

The current Nelson & District Youth Centre was opened in 1997 and
underwent major renovations in 2000-2001. Prior to being used as the
Youth Centre this building was the inventory warehouse for Nelson
Hydro.

Museum, Archives & Art Gallery (Touchstones Nelson)

The distinctive heritage building at 502 Vernon Street, constructed of
Spokane pink brick, Kaslo marble and local common brick, has served
many functions since it was first built in 1902. It was originally a post
office and customs house, spent a short time as a museum, was
purchased by the City in 1961 and opened as the Nelson City Hall on
January 8, 1962. It served as City Hall until April of 2005 when the City
offices moved to 310 Ward Street. 502 Vernon has received extensive
renovations and opened as Touchstones Nelson: Museum of Art and
History in October 2006.

2010 ANNUAL REPORT City of Nelson 29



City Hall ( 310 Ward Street)

The City finalized the purchase of 310 Ward Street from the Province in
December of 2004 and moved the City offices in April 2005. The City
occupies 20% of the building and the Provincial Government ministries
lease the balance of the building from the City. The first floor of the
building has the City’s Finance Department co-locating with the Service
BC’'s office. This co-location is proving to be very successful and
convenient for our joint customers.

Works / Utilities Complex

The Works/Utilities complex was completed in 1988 utilising pre-cast
concrete wall method of construction. The complex is 25,760 square feet
and houses the Public Works, Water and Sewer Utilities, Nelson Hydro,
Stores and Garage/Transit departments. This building provided a much-
needed facility for centralising the public works and utilities functions.

Fire Hall

The present Fire Hall is in the heritage registry. It was constructed in 1912
and has served the City since then. This building was the centre for much
of the filming of the movie "Roxanne."

Police Station/Library

In 1992, the City Police moved into a facility shared with the Nelson Mu-
nicipal Library. The four-storey building was built in the late 1950's as the
regional RCMP headquarters. Purchased by the City in 1990, the building
was completely renovated with the top two floors being the police station
and the first two floors occupied by the library. The lower floor was reno-
vated in 2010 to house the children’s collection.
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Roads, Bridges and Sidewalks

Nelson was a thriving community in the early 20" century;
subsequently, some of its infrastructure dates back to that
time.

The City has adopted a comprehensive development plan
to ensure our roads are maintained at a good standard.
The road and highway network, presently, is of sufficient
capacity to handle existing traffic and upgrades have been
completed or planned to accommodate new growth.
Residential roads are first paved through the local
improvement program. There are a total of seven bridges
within the municipal road system. Most of the bridges are
short-span timber structures with an asphalt cover.

Many of the municipal sidewalks in the residential area
date back to early in the 20th century. The cement
sidewalks within the commercial core are in reasonably
good shape; however, the older sidewalks in the
residential area will require substantial maintenance and/
or replacement. The Active Transportation Plan, which
was adopted by Council, identifies priority walking
corridors and is used to establish the city’s replacement
and snow removal plans..

Waterworks

The City of Nelson collects potable water from three
surface creeks: Five Mile, Anderson and Selous. The City
of Nelson water supply is of premier quality.

The City has an on-going program of replacing older mains
with those of a sufficient size for fire flow purposes. The
City presently has three intake reservoirs and three
storage reservoirs for the system. Due to the topography
of the City, Nelson has 10 pressure reducing stations, to
maintain proper flows and water pressure within the City.

Sanitary Sewer

The City installed a separate sanitary and storm sewer
system in the early seventies. The city has a program to
separate sanitary sewer from storm as the system is
upgraded or as a result of new developments or upgrades
of buildings. Much of the collection system is old vitrified

clay pipe installed during the early part of the century. A
result of the old bituminous pipe and the recent
separation of the storm drainage from the sanitary sewer
is a high degree of infiltration.

The City regularly inspects the collection system with
video cameras. The City has a program of either relining
or replacing lines which the video inspections indicate
require such work.

The City sewage is treated at a plant 3 km west of Nelson.
Funding was secured to upgrade the plant to perform
secondary treatment. This upgrade was completed in
2005.

The City has received numerous requests from properties
adjoining the City boundary to connect to the sewage
system. These requests have resulted in several small
boundary extensions in past years.

Nelson Hydro

Nelson was the first municipal hydro electric utility in the
Province of British Columbia. Presently, the City of Nelson
distributes electrical energy within an approximate 30 km
radius of the City of Nelson. The City owns and operates a
hydro plant 14 km west of Nelson at Upper Bonnington
Falls.

The plant has four operating turbines with a 15 MW
capacity producing 86,000 MWH or approximately 55% of
the system's electrical energy.

The utility has over 9,800 customers who enjoy some of
the lowest hydro rates in North America. The city has
invested in the renewal of all components (generation,
transmission and distribution) of the electric utility over
the past 15 years.
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Solid Waste

The Regional District of Central Kootenay operates a
refuse transfer station where the City collection crews
dispose of the collected garbage and where residents
from the City or the rural area, if they choose, may dump
their garbage. The garbage is then transferred to a landfill
site at Salmo.

The Regional District of Central Kootenay also operates a
recycling program. It is estimated that 12-14 % of the
solid waste is being removed from the waste stream.

Drainage

The City has a number of streams running through the
community which are monitored closely, particularly
during spring runoff. All runoff from the drainage systems
eventually end up in the West Arm of Kootenay Lake. The
City is planning to conduct a comprehensive drainage
study to identify all problem areas and formulate a
drainage plan to help guide future development.

The City's storm water was separated from the sanitary
sewer in the early 1970's. The system is in fairly good
condition.

Parks

The City of Nelson is known for its beautiful parks. The
City has 11 parks with a total area of 23.7 hectares. In
addition, the parks department maintains the cemetery,
which is 18.19 hectares.

The City is fortunate to have been developed on Kootenay
Lake. The City is constructing a high quality pathway along
the waterfront. The City’s centennial project was to
complete 1.8 km of the waterfront pathway from the Hall
Street Gateway Gazebo to Lakeside Park. This pathway
now extends from Cottonwood Creek to Lakeside Park, a
distance of 3.0 km. The City is currently developing Davies
Street Park., which is a 4.8ha passive park. The recently
adopted Sustainable and Downtown Waterfront Plan
identifies new parks at Red Sands beach and the mouth of
Cottonwood Creek.

Municipal Airport

The City of Nelson operates a 940-metre paved airport on
the waterfront which is City-owned. The airport is the
base for private helicopter companies, a charter aircraft
company and numerous private aircraft. There is also a
float plane dock facility at the west end of the airport. The
airport offers a terminal building and avgas fuel facilities.
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The purpose of this report is to provide the readers with a clear understanding of the financial position and financial
activities of the City. The report is divided into three sections:

e Introductory Section: Provides an overview of the City, including the organizational structure, and the nature and

scope of the services provided.

e  Financial Section: Presents the 2010 audited consolidated financial statements, notes, supplementary schedules,
and the independent auditors’ report.

e  Statistical Section: Presents a variety of statistical and financial information, mostly on a five-year comparative
basis.

The City maintains a system of internal controls for the purpose of financial statement reliability and protection of City
assets. The system includes budget preparation, safekeeping of City funds, receiving monies paid to the municipality,
investing in authorized investments, expending funds as authorized by Council, and ensuring accurate and full
accounting of all financial transactions.

The preparation and presentation of the financial statements and related information in the annual report is the
responsibility of the finance department. Staff provide support to the external auditors during the year end audit by
preparing the working papers and ensuring unrestricted access to all related financial information.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010 included in this report were prepared by
city staff in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for local governments, as recommended by the
Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. The consolidated financial
statements have been audited by Berg, Naqvi, Lehmann Chartered Accountants.

2010 OPERATING RESULTS

The financial results for 2010 were favourable and reflect a commitment to sound financial management. The City has
a variety of revenue sources including taxation and grants-in-lieu of $8.1 million, $2.5m in sales of other services,
$655,000 in provincial unconditional grants (revenue sharing and traffic fine sharing). The City also receives revenue
from user fees (including the electrical utility) of $17.5 million.

Operating expenditures include $5.5 million in protective services, $3.2 million in transportation services, $5.0 million
in general government/corporate services and $2.4 million in recreation and cultural services. Utility operations
expenditures (including Nelson Hydro) total $13.2 million. The City contributes $346,000 towards the operation of
Transit.

With recent changes to financial plan presentation, the surplus for 2010 is $4.6m but it must be noted that this does
not include capital expenditures and transfers to reserves

Continued.....
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CAPITAL SPENDING AND RESERVES

The City has an ongoing, aggressive capital program of $8.5m of actual expenditures in 2010. As presented in the Mayor’s
message, the City continues to invest in infrastructure - roads, Water, Hydro, Sewer, etc.

The City’s reserve funds support the capital program. Overall the capital reserves decreased to $7.8m. Council and staff
face the ongoing challenge to continue to address the City’s infrastructure needs drawing down the reserves as required
while continuing to rebuild them for future capital projects. Council is committed to developing a long term capital
financing strategy for general capital in 2011/2012.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The long term debt issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2010 (including temporary borrowing and capital lease
obligations) was $19,025,351 In 2009, this balance was $20,315,606.

The City’s long term debt falls under two classifications—General debt and Utility debt. General debt is funded through
taxation while Utility debt is self-liquidating and repaid through water, sewer and hydro rates.

The outstanding debenture debt at the end of 2010 for each of the City’s funds is:
General $ 13,275,063 Water $1,168,104 Sewer $954,228 Nelson Hydro $3,627,956

As noted in the notes to the financial statements, over $12m of the general debt is being repaid by FortisBC and Selkirk
College through long term contractual agreements.

The City is in a good financial position and strives to be innovative and creative in terms of service delivery that reflects
Council priorities and community expectations. The City continues to be accountable in spending, sensitive to public
needs, and aims to preserve community infrastructure while balancing the economic conditions of the community.

okt

Kevin Cormack, BComm, CA
Acting Chief Financial Officer
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The Corporation of the City of Nelson
Suite 101, 310 Ward Street, Melson British Columbia V1L 554

CITY OF MELSCM

Management is responsible for the preparation of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the accounting principles disclosed in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements and include amounts that are based on
estimates and judgments. Management believes that the financial statements
fairly present The Corporation of the City of Nelson's consolidated financial
position and results of operations. The integrity of the information presented in
the financial statements, including estimates and judogments relating to matters.
not concluded by fiscal year-end, is the responsibility of management. The
financial statements have been approved by Council.

Management has established and maintained appropriate systems of intemal
control including policies and procedures, which are designed to provide
reasonable assurance that The Corporation of the City of Nelson's assets are
safeguarded and that reliable financial records are maintained to form a proper
hasis for preparation of the financial statements.

The independent external auditors, Berg Nagvi Lehmann, Chartered
Accountants, have been appointed by Council to express an opinion as to
whether the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, The Corporation of the City of Nelson's financial position, results of
operations, and changes in financial position in conformity with the accounting
principles disclosed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. The
report of Berg Magvi Lehmann, Chartered Accountants, follows and outlines the
scope of their examination and their opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

N —

Kevin Cormack, BComm, CA
City Manager/ Acting Chief Financial Officer

Suita 10], 310 Ward Screac, Malzan, British Columbiz, VIL 554
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BERG NAQVI LEHMANN BNIL. ca

A Commitment To Excellence"”

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS & BUSINESS ADVISORS M.D. Berg, FCA, CAoCIRP *+

A.Nagvi, B.Comm.,FCA «
Craig Berg, B.Comm.,CA «
Stefan Lehmann,B.Math, CA, CFP =
Jon McMillan, B.Sc., CA +

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of Council of the City of Nelson

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Corporation of the City of Nelson, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2010, and the consolidated statement of operations and
accumulated surplus, consolidated statement of changes in net debt and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian public
accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The
Corporation of the City of Nelson as at December 31, 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The
current year's supplementary schedules included in Schedules 1 to 9 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects

in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Chartered Accountants

August 8, 2011

Nelson, B.C.

507 Vernon Street, Nelson, British Columbia, Canada VIL 4E9 Tel (250) 352-3165 Fax: (250)352-7166 Email: advice@bnl.ca

Members, InstiMe of Chartered Accountants of British Columbia
*Incorporated Professional + Associate
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o

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

STATEMENT A
As at Decerrber 31, 2010
2010 2009
Financlal Assets
Cash and short-term imestments (Nule 2 $ 132450697 § 14,728.509
Imestments {Mote 3) 2,406,951 238,570
Taxes recehable 524,300 428,668
Dus from other govemments 475,901 828,31
Trads accounts 3,538,822 2487 488
Long term eccounts recshable (Muw 4) 4,595,434 4.847.711
MFA deposiis (Nae 7) 482,557 428622
Cther asssls 12,020 7,887
25,279,082 26,088108
Financlel Liabllites
Cus to other govemmaents 411 gE. 818
Trads accounts 4,070,488 3,748,818
Cthar llablitiss 207,210 264108
Accrusd Intersst 182,941 147.287
Daferrac revanue 4,274,827 4,745,828
VWages and bensfits 1,124,419 1,038,860
Futurs payroll obligations 1,383,878 1,231,244
Long term debt {MNobe 5) 18,324,105 16.438.800
Capital lsass cbligation {kote &) 701,158 876,008
30,278,626 21.886,867
Net Debt {4,008,843) (€.802.681)
Non-financlal Asssts
Inwntory 1,827,019 1.608.088
Frapald sxpenses 232,883 28183
Tanglble capltal assstis { Schedule 5) 138,870,128 133,380,138
138,930,030 138 136,378
Accumulated Surplus (Nots 10) $ 133,031,187 § 120 331,787
Reprasentsd by:
Cparating fund (Maote 11) 4,504,083 3, TE2.888
Capttal fund (662,548) (812.2E8)
Statutory resens ind {Schedule 3) 7,846,830 8.608.188
Equity In tanglble capiial asssts 122,243,020 117,882,660
§ 133,031,187 & 120.331.787

K#dn Comack. CA
Chisf Financlal Officer
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

e

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS STATEMENTB

For the year endad Decamber 31, 2010

2010 Budget 2010 2009

Revenue
Taxes $ 8001105 ¢ 8148579 § 7,825,835
Sale of sendces 2448,360 2,547,223 2,228,855
Other revenue fom own sources 3,727,577 2,996,513 2,861,479
Invastment Incoms 82,500 804,202 1,0°7,708
CGrants - uncondtional 63,688 703,141 64,808
Grants - condltional £,862,080 2,785,562 £,862,083
Water user fass £,368,044 2,410,327 2,182,270
Sewar user fess Z,214,280 2,210,661 Z,027,083
Translt ussr fess 260,878 270,281 205 8168
Nslson Hydro salss 12,808,122 12,670,132 12,302 438
Cain on sals of langlbls caplial asssts 211,488

35,268,440 36,777,200 34,328,820

Expsnsss
CGeneral govsmment 3,183,405 5,072,135 4,278,407
Protecihve sendces £,332,880 5,461,306 4,898,501
Englnesring and Publle Works 3,047,451 3,160,871 3,201,743
Wasts collsctlon 251,834 221,162 489,843
Camatery ssndcss 16 487 186,880 181,103
Parks, racrsation and cultural ssrdcss £,812,801 2,410,400 2,423,248
Interast and other debt charges £38,081 1,402,661 1,572,387
Water utlllity operations 1,088,623 1,415,020 1,433,878
Sewsr utlllty opsrations 1,822,387 1,864,653 1,727,468
Nslson Hydro operations 8,338,284 8,676,686 8,765,583
Translt utlllty opsrations 1,285,788 1,286,125 1,171,870
Loss on cisposal of {angible caplial asssis - - 4°8,808
28,508,518 31,177,800 30,800,855
Annual surplus {defclt) 8,857,821 4,580,400 3,727,974
Accumulated surplus at baginning of year (Mo 10) 120,221,767 120,301,787 125,803,813
Accumulated surplus at end of year § 136,180,708 $§ 133,831,187 § 120,331,787

Contingent Ulabllitiss and Commitmesnts {Note &)
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

CONEOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT ETATEMENTC
For the year endad December 31, 2010
2010 Budget 2010 2009
Annual Surplus 8,857,021 4,599,400 3,727,974
Acquisition of tangible capital assets {11,662,804)  (8,465,059) (6,186,427
Amortizatlon of tanglble capltal asssts - 4,443,548 4,427,788
Procesds on sals of tanglble capltal asssts - 723,007 -
{Galn) / loss on dispesal of tanglble caplial asssts - (211,488) £16,6808
i4,624,083) 1,080,408 2,408,021
{Acquisltion) consumption of supply Inventory - (317,830) (305,788)
{Acquisition consumption of prepald sxpsnse - 33,270 {&7,684)
- (284,660) (373,770)
(Incresass)/decreass In net debt {4,824 083) 804,748 2,032,151
Het debt, beginning of year {5,603,561) (5,803,501) {7,825,742)
Net debf, end of year {10,628,574)  (4,008,843)  (5,802,581)
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS STATEMENT D
For the year ended December 31, 2010
2010 2009
Operating activities:
Annual surplus/(deficit) § 4599400 § 3727974
Mon cash items:
- Amortization of tangible capital assets 4,443,548 4,427,769
- Increase (decrease) in prepaid expenses 33,270 (67.,984)
- Decrease (increase) in supply inventory (317,930) (305,786)
-(Gain)/Loss on sale of tangible capital assets (211,488) 416,605
Changes to financial assets/liabilities:
- Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (729,939) 544,993
- Decrease (increase) in investment (87,381) (147.489)
- Decrease (increase) in MFA cash deposits (56,935) (30,000}
- Decrease (increase) in other financial assets (4,133) 12,629
- Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 319,693 347,888
- Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue (470,999) 856,663
- Increase (decrease) in future obligations 52,634 125173
- Increase (decrease) in other liabilities (21,245) 64,587
Cash provided by operating activities 7,548,495 9,973,022
Capital activities:
Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets 723,007 -
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (8,465,059) (6,166,427)
Cash used for capital transactions (7,742,052) (6,166,427)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from debt issues 67,200 3,000,000
Debt repayment (714,744) (997.950)
Actuarial adjustments (467,861) (419,040}
Repayment of capital lease obligations (174,850) (113,508}
Cash applied to financing transactions (1,290,255) 1,469,502
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,483,812) 5,276,097
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 14,729,509 9,453,412
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 13,245697 § 14,729,509
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

1. Significant Accounting Policies

The Corporation of the City of Nelson (the City) is a local government in the Province of British Columbia. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles as recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants.

The following is a summary of the City’s significant accounting policies:

(@)

Basis of Presentation
Funds are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining objectives in
accordance with regulations, restrictions or limitations. Currently in use are the following funds:

Operating Funds
These funds report the operating activities of the municipality and include the General Operating
and Nelson Municipal Library as well as the Water, Sewer, Transit and Nelson Hydro utilities.
Capital Funds
These funds are used to acquire Capital Assets. Capital funds have been set up for the General,
Water, Sewer and Hydro funds.
Reserve Funds
These funds have been created to hold funds for specific future requirements. They are
comprised of the funds shown in the supplementary information on Schedule 3. The use of these
funds, are restricted by the Community Charter and municipal bylaws and are funded 100% by
cash and short-term investments.

Principles of Consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all the funds of the City. Inter-fund
transactions and balances have been eliminated in the consolidated statements. In addition, details for
each Fund have been presented under “Supporting Schedules”.

Revenue Recognition

Sources of revenue are recorded on the accrual basis and include revenue in the period in which the
transactions or events occurred that give rise to the revenues. Taxation revenues are recognized at the
time of issuing the property tax notices for the fiscal year. Sale of services and user fee revenues are
recognized when the service or product is rendered by the City.

Grant revenues are recognized when the funding becomes receivable. Revenue unearned in the current
period is recorded as deferred revenue.

Financial Instruments

The City’s financial instruments consist of cash and short term investments, accounts receivable, due
from other governments, accounts payable, employee benefit plans and long term debt. It is
management’s opinion that the City is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising
from these financial instruments. The fair values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying
values.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Post Employment Benefits

The City records the cost of post employment benefits over the employee’s term of
employment. Upon retirement a portion of accumulated sick leave credits are paid
to the employee based on years of service.

Interest and Actuarial Additions on Long Term Debt
The City records interest expense and actuarial additions on long-term debt on an
accrual basis.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Significant areas requiring estimates include the useful lives
of tangible capital assets for amortization, future employee benefits, allowance for
doubtful accounts and provision for contingencies. Actual results could differ from
management’s best estimates as additional information becomes available in the
future.

Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets, comprised of capital assets and capital assets under
construction, are recorded at cost and are classified according to their functional
use. Amortization is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life
of the asset commencing the year the asset is put in to service. Donated tangible
capital assets are reported at fair value at the time of donation. Estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Land Improvements 15t0 20 years
Buildings 10to 75 years
Fixtures, Furniture, Equipment & Vehicles 4t020 vyears
Technology 41010 years
Roads and Paving 10to 100 years
Bridges and other Transportation Structures 10to 100 years
Water Infrastructure 10to 100 years
Sewer Infrastructure 10 to 100 years
Nelson Hydro Infrastructure 10to 100 years
Drainage Infrastructure 10 to 100 years

2. Cash and short-term Investments

Cash and short-term investments are comprised of:

2010 2009
Cash $ 4,552,783 $ 5,937,826
(MFA) Bond and Money Market funds 8,692,914 8,791,683

$13,245,697 $14,729,509
Municipal Finance Authority (MFA) pooled investment funds are considered
equivalent to cash because of their liquidity.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

3. Investments

Investments are carried according to the cost method, where cost is adjusted to reflect
accrued interest less any permanent decline in market value below cost.

Investments are composed of Government and Bank issued accrual notes and
debentures as follows.

2010 2009

Maturity Carrying Market Carrying Market

Value Value Value Value

2009 100,000 100,000
2010 100,000 100,000

2011

2012 278,800 304,785 266,700 304,785

2013 139,116 152,902 134,416 152,902

2014 482,570 531,377 669,670 731,377
2015 252,593 301,660

2016 - 2020 1,153,872 1,443,188 1,148,784 1,494,849

Total 2,406,951 2,833,912 2,319,570 2,783,913

In addition, investments are held for trusts as reported in the supplementary information on
Schedule 4.

4. Long Term Accounts Receivable

Selkirk College — The City entered into an agreement with Selkirk College in April 2000, to
undertake certain improvements to the Tenth Street Campus. Selkirk College is paying for the
improvements over a 25 year term in equal monthly installments at the Municipal Finance
Authority lending rate plus 1%.

Various other agreements — The City has entered into agreements with various organizations for
goods and services or to repay long term financing agreements over an extended period of time.

2010 2009
Selkirk College $4,398,243  $ 4,609,433
Various other agreements 197,191 38,278

4 434 $ 4,647,711

5. Long Term Debt

Debt principal is reported net of sinking fund balances. Interest rates on debenture debt range
from 4.0% to 8.5%.

The long term debt issued and outstanding as of December 31% 2010 including temporary
borrowing and capital lease obligations was $19,025,351. (2009 - $20,315,606).
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

6.

The following payments are required over the next five years

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
General 1,172,373 1,095,278 925,259 906,130 906,130
Sewer 113,279 113,279 106,894 95,964 93,123
Water 106,136 106,136 106,136 106,136 106,136
Nelson Hydro 1,022,655 1,010,535 966,613 666,213 123,873
Total 2,414,443 2,325,228 2,104,902 1,774,443 1,229,262
Total Principal 1,064,563 1,051,838 910,207 893,104 650,092
Total Interest 1,349,880 1,273,390 1,194,695 881,339 579,170
Total 2,414,443 2,325,228 2,104,902 1,774,443 1,229,262

Lease obligations

a)

b)

Equipment leases
The City has various commitments to lease vehicles and equipment until May 25,
2012. The payments required up to 2012 and residual amounts total $424,586.

Capital leases

The City has entered into a 35 year capital lease with FortisBC Energy Inc (formerly
Terasen Gas Inc.), commencing October 31, 2003 for the natural gas distribution
system within the municipality’s boundary. The City has prepaid $7,600,000 of the
capital lease obligation and has financed the prepayment through debenture debt. The
remaining obligation of $400,000 will be paid with annual lease payments of $36,354
including interest at 8.614%.

The City has also entered into a seventeen year operating lease with FortisBC expiring
October 31, 2020 whereby the City leases back to FortisBC the operations of the gas
distribution system. Under the operating lease FortisBC is required to make annual
lease payments to the City calculated by a formula specified in the agreement which is
based on the total annual revenue generated by the transaction. At the end of the
seventeen year term FortisBC has the option of making a termination payment to the
City equal to the unamortized portion of the City’s $7,600,000 prepayment under the
capital lease which is estimated to be $3,900,000, or negotiate a new eighteen year
operating lease with a continuation of the annual lease payments which existed under
the previous seventeen year operating lease.

Future payments required under the terms of all capital leases in the aggregate and in
each of the succeeding five years are as follows (the obligation in 2009 was $876,006):

Year FortisBC Equipment Total
2011 $ 36,354 $105,832 $ 142,186
2012 36,354 25,169 61,523
2013 36,354 36,354
2014 36,354 36,354
2015 36,354 36,354
Thereafter/Residual 836,142 244,564 1,080,706
Less interest 635,656 56,665 692,321
Capital Lease obligation $ 382,256 318,900 701,156

2010 ANNUAL REPORT City of Nelson

45



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

7. Municipal Finance Authority Debt Reserve Fund

The Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia (MFA) provides capital financing for
regional districts and their member municipalities. The MFA is required to establish a Debt
Reserve Fund. The MFA must then use this fund if at any time there are insufficient funds to
meet payments on its obligations. If this occurs the regional districts may be called upon to
restore the fund.

Each regional district, through its member municipalities who share in the proceeds of a debt
issue, is required to pay into the Debt Reserve Fund certain amounts set out in the financing
agreements. The interest earned on the Debt Reserve Fund, less administrative expenses,
becomes an obligation of the MFA to the regional districts.

Upon maturity of a debt issue, the unused portion of the Debt Reserve Fund established for
that issue will be discharged to the Municipality. The proceeds from these discharges will be
credited to income in the year they are received. As at December 31, 2010, the total of the
Debt Reserve Fund was comprised of:

2010 2010 2010 Total 2009 Total
Cash Demand
deposits notes

General Fund $198,756 $573,864 $ 772,620 $ 497,203
Sewer Utility 16,998 45,112 62,110 61,575
Water Utility 13,213 40,843 54,056 53,640
Nelson Hydro 253,590 470,320 723,910 715,931
Total $482,557 $1,130,139 $1,612,696 $1,328,349

8. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Regional District Debt — Regional District debt is under the provisions of the Community
Charter of BC a direct, joint and several liability of the District and each member municipality
within the District including the City of Nelson.

Claims for Damages - In the normal course of a year the City is faced with lawsuits and
claims for damages of a diverse nature. The outcome of these claims cannot be reasonably
determined at this time.

Reciprocal Insurance Exchange Agreement - The City is a subscribed member of the
Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia (The “Exchange”) as provided by
Section 3.02 of the Insurance Act of British Columbia. The main purpose of the exchange is
to pool the risks of liability so as to lessen the impact upon any subscriber. Under the
Reciprocal Insurance Exchange agreement, the Municipality is assessed a premium and
specific deductible based on population and claims experience. The obligation of the
Municipality with respect to the Exchange and/or contracts and obligations entered into by
the Exchange on behalf of its subscribers in connection with the Exchange are in every case
several and not joint and several. The City irrevocably and unconditionally undertakes and
agrees to indemnify and save harmless the other subscribers against liability losses and
costs which the other Subscriber may suffer.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Pension Liability - The City of Nelson and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension
Plan (Plan), a jointly trusteed pension plan. The Board of Trustees, representing plan members
and employers, is responsible for overseeing the management of the Plan, including investment
of the assets and administration of benefits. The Plan is a multi-employer contributory pension
plan. Basic pension benefits provided are defined. The Plan has about 163,000 active members
and approximately 60,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 35,000
contributors from local governments.

Every three years an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the Plan
and the adequacy of Plan funding. The most recent valuation as at December 31, 2009 indicated
an unfunded liability of $1,024 million for basic pension benefits. The next valuation will be as at
December 31, 2012 with results available in 2013. The actuary does not attribute portions of the
surplus to individual employers. The City of Nelson paid $1,090,852 for employer contributions to
the plan in fiscal 2010.

9. Taxes levied for other paid Authorities:

In addition to taxes levied for municipal purposes, the City is legally obligated to collect and remit
taxes levied for the following authorities. These collections and remittances are not recorded as
revenue and expenses.

2010 2009
Provincial Government — school taxes $ 8,630,011 $ 8,391,987
Regional District of Central Kootenay 3,284,381 3,101,851
Central Kootenay Hospital District 71,280 79,994
West Kootenay Boundary Hospital District 292,885 284,733
British Columbia Assessment Authority 170,286 155,179
Municipal Finance Authority 415 381

$ 12,449,258 $ 12,014,125

10. Prior period adjustments

In 2009 the City adopted the provisions of Section 3150 of the PSAB Handbook and recorded the
City’s tangible capital assets, net of amortization, as non-financial assets. During 2010, additional
information became available in regard to the City's equipment leases and the financial
statements have been retroactively adjusted.

Equipment leases previously recorded as operating leases have been reclassified as capital
leases. The impact of this change was to increase financial liabilities and decrease accumulated
surplus for 2009 by $490,531 from amounts previously recorded and to increase annual surplus
for 2009 by $110,550.

11. Operating fund surplus is composed of:

a) Unappropriated

2010 2009

General $ 1,165,960 $1,118,992
Water 302,743 302,743
Sewer 16,463 16,463
Hydro 434,976 484,977
Library 3,474 36,600
1,923,616 1,959,775
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

b) Appropriated (reserve accounts)

Airport

Bridges

Economic development
Emergency 911

Future Employee benefits
Insurance

Legal

Parking & transportation
Playing fields

Recycling

Storm sewer

Tenth St. Campus
Fortis pay down

Total a) and b)

12. Budget Data

The budget figures are from the annual five year financial plan bylaw adopted before May

2010 2009
203,800 203,800
160,000 120,000

97,949 90,818
2,291 84
(180,733) (197,883)
387,774 397,142
20,000 20,000
34,043 34,043

- 30,993

95,309 79,541
98,414 147,807
346,810 327,069
1,314,810 539,810
2,580,467 1,793,224
$4.504.083 $3,752.999

15 each year and the Library approved budget. The budgets are not subject to audit.
Subsequent changes are made by Council to reflect changes as required by law.

Amortization of tangible capital assets was not included in the budget. The table below
shows the reconciliation between the approved budget and the budget presented in these

consolidated financial statements:

Revenue
Expenses
Operating
Capital
Debt retirement

Proceeds on debt issuance
Total approved expenses

Less
Capital expenses
Debt retirement

Proceeds on debt issuance
Total reported expenses

Annual surplus

13. Comparative figures

Certain of the prior year’s figures have been changed to conform to the current basis of

presentation.

Budget Amount
$ 35,366,440

28,508,519
11,682,904
1,785,389

(1,310,000)
40,666,812

(11,682,904)
(1,785,389)
1,310,000
28,508,519
$ 6,857,921
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

L
TATEMENT OF FINANGCIAL POSITION - BY FUND SCHEDULE 1
As st Decembar 31. 2040
OPERATING FUNDS Nelgon
Helson Municipal
Gensral Water Sevrer Hydro Transit Library
Financlal Asssts
Cash and shart-bemi Imestnisnts S 5804205 S - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 1943
Due fam cber povemments 321672 - - - 154.2 -
Trade accowits 1752955 121427 11721 1.550.500 - -
Lorg berm 2cc cunbs recehable 197161 - - - - -
MFA dopoata 198 765 12213 15998 283 530
Otrer assels - 11.600 - 42 - -
Due fam con dnds 4,458 151 1.045 725 771. %6 1.122.050 - 57.882
13.267.220 1.192 95 $00.023 293370 134229 77313
Liablities
Due o oo dreds 1.620.500 514252 £01.255 3384 730 154.2 -
Due o olhve govaTmEnts 41 - - - - -
Trade accownts 4.035 000 - 30529 5954 - 5903
Otrer Bakiies Q9e7 - 197.283 - -
Accreed Interest 77050 4710 a7id o1.578 - -
Netmed reaems 3 PR7 053 ar1 2t 2305 290% 400 - -
Wapes and beneils 1.088 375 - - - - 35043
Fut.re paymdl chilgations 1.353078 - - - - 30800
Lorg barm oabt
Captd lease obligation - - - - - -
11,453 263 200,223 83 552 39730% 154,20 TAER
NetFinanclal Asests{Net Dabf) 2813067 302 723 16.453 {1.030.276) - a47d
Non-Financial Aseste
Ineriony 352 7E7 - - 1.474.252 - -
Prepald expenses 232883 - - - - -
Targile capltal assels - - - - - -
585 650 - - 1.474.252 - -
Accumulated Surpius § 3399817 5 B0ZTZ 5 18483 5 43487 S - 8 3,474
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

SCHEDULE 1

CAPITAL FUND2

Helecn Reserve Coneclidated
Genaral Y ater Sawar Hydre Transit Funde 010

8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - B 8422081 € 13,248,007
- - - - 2,408,851 2,400,081

- 924,300

- #78,801

- 3,836,822

- 4,008,434

#82, 887

- - - - - - 12,020

- - - - 1,606 637 8,078, 832
4.208.2:3 - - - - 10.3234. 640 34,200,314

4.208.2:3

481.811 - 34 126 - - 2,487,018 8,078, 892
- - 411
#,078,480
207,210
182, 841
#,274, 027
1/124,418
1,383,878
18,324,108
704,188
38,207,187

12.673.007 1.188.104 054 228 3.827.958
701.158 . - -
T3.668.874 1.188.104 588 363 3 827.058

3
.
[-]
S
w
-

(8.16@. 431) {1.188.104) {088 353) {3.827.858) - T.848.830 {#,008,843)

- - - - - - 1,827,018
- - - - - 292,882
28.288 17. 846 671 24,862,237 - - 138,870,128

.£34.032 3. 57
3.328.280 17.645 671 24.862.237 - - 120,9830,00

L34, 052

€ 81,878,801 & 22,170,184 & 15,887.218 © 21,024,281 6 - B T248030 6 132,031,187
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o, o
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS - BY FUND
For the year ended Cacember 31, 2010

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

Melson
Ganeral Water Sower Hydro
Revenuss
Texes $ 8135593 $ - 8 12986 $ -
Sale of sendces 2,493,394 - - -
Other revanue from own sources 3,360,087 159,755 120,973 380.961
rsestment meome 174,504 1,797 10,927 202 845
Granks - umeonckional 655,521 - - -
Grants - conditional 1,337,124 354, 720 145,000 -
YWaber user ees - 2,410,327 - -
Sewer user fees - - 2,219,661 -
Transk user fees - - - -
Melson Hydm sales - - - 12.670.132
Galn on sale of langlble caphal assets 537,586 - - -
16,702,802 2,926,599 2,509,547 13,343,738
Exponses
General Gove mment 5,076,333 - - -
Protecths serdces 5,840,608 - - -
Transportation serices 3843.773 - - -
Ervirorimental health senicas 257976 - - -
Publie health and welkane senices 21544 - - -
Recreation and cultural sevices 1,912 927 - - -
Intbanest and other debt changes 580,147 60,568 63,406 698,540
Yaber utlky opemtions - 1,472,449 - -
Sevwer utlky operations - - 1,835,546 -
Melson Hycno opemstions - - - 8,912,404
Transk wlity operations - - - -
Loss on disposal of tangble ceplal assels 288,574 6,539 30,985
17,327,185 1,821,591 2,005,491 9,641,926
Annual surplus (deflclt) (624.378) 1,108,008 504,056 3.701.812
Transfers from (to)
Operating Furxis 1,567,397 {267 .269) {150,000) {2.100,000)
Caphal Furxis 004 048 (286 582) {84,504) -
Reserve Funds 36,725 %514.252) T37.161 654,050
2,599,070 {1,068,103) 522,507 {1.445,950)
Agcumulabed suplus &t begirming of
wyear 53,300,524 32,436,022 15,847,058 19,203,395
Accumulated surplus at end of vear § 60,276,218 § 02472927 © 10,875,081 § 21.469,267

2010 ANNUAL REPORT City of Nelson

52



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

SCHEDULE 2
Nelson

Municipal Reserve Eliminations Consolidated

Transit Library Funds 2010
$ - § -$ - % - § 8,148,579
- €9,662 - {15,833) 2,547,223
4,172 158,119 - {1,196,554) 2,996,513
- - 324,519 - 804,392
- 47,620 - - 703,141
676,429 282,289 - - 2,795,562
. - - - 2,410,327
- - - - 2,219,661
270,281 - - - 270,281
- - - - 12,670,132
- - - - 537,586
950,882 557,690 324,519 {1,212,387) 36,103,397
- - - {4,198) 5,072,135
- - - {178,302} 5,461,306
- - - {482,802) 3,160,871
- - - {38,814) 221,162
- - - {18,441) 196,980
- 623,407 - {116,834} 2,419,400
- - - - 1,402,681
- - - {56,529) 1,415,920
- - - {70,893) 1,864,653
- - - {235,715) 8,676,686
1,296,784 - - {10,859) 1,286,125
- - - - 326,008
1,296,784 623,407 - {1,212,387) 31,503,997
(245,902) (65,717) 324,519 - 4,599,400
345,902 603,870 3,005,347 - 3,005,347
- {B43,772) (3,991,424) - (3,991,424)
- 72,393 - - 986,077
345,902 32,591 {986,077) - -
- 36,600 8,508,188 - 129,331,787
$ = § 3474 § 7,846,630 ¢ = $§ 133,931,187
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES SCHEDULE 3

For the year ending December 31. 2010
{w ith camparative fgurss for 20090

Tax Sale Ecuipm ant Water Future Power Capltal Land Water Ut
Replacement Llkence Purchags Projects Sales kajor Capltal

Fund balences,
2ecinn ng of year. $ 18627 € 1208648 § 444632 § B57 252 $ 4B 285 § 2277890 § B34 o7
REVENUES:
mastimen: ezmings 6587 78986 22 406 28, 73C 20,158 12,717 35,906
TRANSFERS
Transker ta capital unds - {£29825) (367,70 - {635,162) ;395 663) -
Transler from operaling - €6100C 415000 - 750,000 665,095 514,52
- 131178 47 830 - 114,838 289,432 514,252

Fundbalznces encofyewr $ 19314 € 1€0580¢ § 514868 § 585282 & 503,711 § 509,938 § 1414729
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

$CHEDULE 3

Nelson
Parks ©Off 8treet ‘Walerfront MNelsonHydro SewerUtll. Municipal 2010 2008
Acqulsition Parking Desvelopment Capital Caplial Library Total Total
S 129034 § 191,238 § 31,431 § 2227890 § 1,725,033 § 24,058 § ©,508,1886 S 8,316,837
4,502 7.881 2,587 €2,639 16,783 887 324,519 532,004
- {190,000 - {1,120.080)  (737.181) (7.363) (3,001,424) (3,233,187
. . . . - - 3,005,347 2892,504
- {190,000 - {1,120.080) (737,161 (7.363)  (086,077)  (340,683)
S 133,836 5 6819 5 33,988 5 1,191,179 & 1,004.625 S 17.532 § 7,846,630 & &.506.168
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

TRUSTFUND STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION SCHEDULE 4

25 ot Dacankar 31. 2000
¥ i corparaiive figures ‘or 2009)
Cemetary Gemstery Juslice Dether  Spurvey 2040 2009
Cae Replacement  fMelorakd Ganlers Fsiala Total Tokal
ASSETS:
Cash 5 47082 £ 108280 3 1458 5 14294 § 154012 § 328,084 3 3id7i8
Recehables < 005 1.825 - - - 2,930 0271

Imastmeants 531.842 - - - 531,842 518.917
583.409 110.085 1.455 14.2%4 154.012 863,286 837904

LIABILITIES:
Aczounts Mayabls - - - - 3.740 [ ) 7.524
EQUITY:
Furd balance 583 400 110.085 1.455 14.2H 147,272 868,018 §30.380

3 H83409 £ 110085 3 1450 3 14294 3 154012 § 002,200 3 037.904

TRUSTFLURIDS &TA TEMENT OF CHAHGES IN FUND BALAMNCES
For e year snding Decomier 31. 2010
w7 i corparsiive figures for 2009)]

Cemelery  Comeleny uslice Beltar  Spurvey 2010 200
Cane Heplacement Mclorald Ganders Estate Total lotal

Fund balance, beginning of year § 552.452 iddss & 1404 § 13785 § 149.273 § B30,3B0 5 775.727

REVEMUES:
Imestmeant eamngs 15.200 3795 52 509 5738 28,994 35908
Olhe conlrbulions 18.057 1.825 - - - 17,882 18.247
32 957 5820 52 5089 5.738 44,878 74153
EXPEMCITURES:
Cisbwrsements 12.000 8.740 18,740 19.800
12.000 - - - 8.740 18,740 19.500
fund balance, #nd of year S 583409 £ 110083 5 1455 5 14294 5 147271 § 860,515 5 530380
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

i

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS S8CHEDULE &
s atDecembzer 31. 2010

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Equipment’
Furnhure’
Com putsry Capital
Land Bulldings ¥ehicles  and Other Library Laass
Historical Gost
Opering Balance & 135.24¢ 33,447 083 F 878038 2 120 886 45 TH 8 136,404
Additions 27225 587935 670 955 330194 148,100 -
Changes In assels under constnuction - - - - - -
Disposals {55039 - {FFra722) {140.718) d5.071) -
Wiite Doams
Clozing Galance Dec. 31 [ T ] 34.035 026 FIraiEr 232 472 548,800 8. 186,404

Accumulated Amortization:

Operirg Galance na (18080439 (3263254) (894654 (200840) (1.637.281)
Amartization Expense nia (1.172738)  (d74638) (245005 (53140)  (233407)
Efiects of Disposals and - 543233 168,829 51184 -
wiite down adiustments

Clasing Baance Det. 31 - (19253171) (@.114050)  (@0020) {(2026%) (1671176

Net Book Value for year

snced December 31, 2010 8397438 14,781,857 4,861,212 1,345,882 348,904  €,318,228
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

SCHEDULE 8
EMNGINEERING STRUCTURES
Gonsalldated

Nelson
Hydra -

Generating Helsen sl

Roads and and Hydro - under

Water Sover Stom Other Subsiatiors Other gonstrucion 2o K9

210011 HeHe  173WI  D112972  157NS H5ART 2000571 10E800.908 184,010,804

1.751.162 1.477.085 165,654 2155343 1.330.813 - 8 924,47 8,185,428
- - - . : S 1T V) -
@2y (1142 - gz - @A © BT (2844
43 207 250 27 132064 17.621. 827 22144111 16. 730 641 95234 253 1.631 482 OEEE2488 100,000,800
@.005084) (@.800403) (H1003R4) GO0ELOY) (TSI 2 OMEN - [EaSOTT2) 091,951,817
(GR7.508) (83 &7d) 232.471) G23.021) (267.302) GBleoid [d43848) [[4TT.TEH
204551 5.68d - 103,458 . rix e - 1. 01,981 888,808
OUNTY)  @omds) @owt0)  @IBon)  GoRIE)  AZeady - [Eassiom) (s8ATTE

17,678 1T,846,8T1 1217887 18,767,141 19,504,528 12,085,820 15¥1480  IBEETO138 183,390,136
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@ THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON
DEEENTURE DEBT - ALL FUNDS
For the year ended Dacember 2, 200
Maturity Interest Criginal Salancs
Datécfissus  Bydaw Purpose Deies  Rates lssus  Jan1, 2010
SENERAL CAPITAL FUND
Local Impressmants
iar 24, 1888 2821 Strast Constructlon MFA 88 19882011 &.66 226,400 7,833
New 7, 2000 2888  Weterfont Ordwe MFATE 2000.2012 838 18,362 £.888
Nev 7. 2000 2088  Sirest Construction MFA 73  2000-2013 -] 208,668 78,248
New 2 2007 o334  Sirsst Constructlon MFA 102 2008-2022 4.00 €031 4€.188
Gensral Govemment
ey 13, 1662 2470  Polic&/Ubrary Bldg MFA €3 18822012 €10 860,000 186,837
Apr 12 2000 2871 Tanth Strest Campus MFA 72 20002028 318 €.080,000 48282428
Apr g 2002 2017 Lakeskls Flelds MFA 77 20022012 €.08 1,000,000 333,788
Cet 3, 2008 03 Hwy JAMFASS 2008-2021 4.00 300,000 262 867
Forlle Gas Franchles 2004.2021 7,308,404 7.388.204
Apr8 210 2878M128/04 Forlls Gas MFA 110 2010-2020 4.8 4,200,000
§ 20430086 § 12664,%6¢
WATER CAPITAL FUND
Movd 2007 3038  Falndew Rsservar MFAI02 2008-2022 4.000 240,000 216,489
Apr 21, 2008 2026 Waler Impr. MFA 108 2008-2028 4.800 1,000,000 1,000,000
$ 1,240000 § 1,216,489
SEWER CAPITAL FUND
ey 12 1663 2859  North Shors Line M=AE8 18632013 8.E0 180,280 28,320
ey 10, 1664 2854  North Shors Line M=AE0 1864-2014 880 3E.400 12138
Cet 31, 2008 0IFT STPWFASE 2008-2021 4.00 §60,000 83,671
Apr 21, 2000 2026 Sewer impr. MFA 108 2008-20289 4.80 £00.000 £00,000
$ 1,2388680 & 1018020
NELSON HYORO CAPITAL FUND
Meay 16, 1660 236  System Improvement M=A48 16602000 11.226 - -
iay 10, 1964 2806  Hydro Plant MFA 8 1864-2014 T.810 8.000.000 2811.202
Apr g 2002 2817  Bonningion Sub. MFATT 20022012 €.080 400,000 133,614
Apr 21, 2000 Hydro Impr. MFA 108 2008-2028 4.600 1,800,000 1,800,800
$ £.800000 § 4244717
TOTAL § 28085708 & 10438600
—Sapltal Lease Obligations
Fortls LILC capiial lsazs Z004-2038 8814 400.000 BEATE
MTA squipmant lsess 2007.2012 7o7.472 480,831
TOTAL $ 1,187,472 § 870,008
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

$CHEDULE 6
2010 2010 Principal Actuarial Interest & Balance
Tranafers ssuss Repsyments Adjust. Exchange  Dec 31, 2010

- 12,728 €880 9,580 18,028

. 1,262 810 810 3,904

. 2,814 214 214 42,468

- 29,033 30,628 88,560 117,278

. 142,878 8,618 191,820 4,427,238

. 76,508 38,831 60,600 218,849

- 14,982 2,008 13,2¢0 238,869

{4,132,800) . . 88,902 3,253,604
4,200,000 €4, 800 4,200,000

S (4132800) § 4200000 & 296,186 & 160492 & 493686 S 12873907

. 11,986 1,020 11,868 202,463
33,862 7 48,000 968,641

5 - 5 4b%68 S 1767 5 60568 S 1,168,104
. 4844 8.692 12771 29,084

. 1,071 1,171 1,770 9,896

. 27,468 3.67 24,388 432,427

16,791 388 24,800 482,621

5 - 5 49874 S 10927 5 63406 5 o428
. 241941 277,228 600,800 2,082,034

. 31,802 14,282 24240 87,460

80,373 1,168 73,800 1,448,462

s - S 324,116 S 262646 5 698540 S 3,627,986

$ (41328000 § 4,200,000 § 714,744 § 467861 § 1,316,200 & 16,324,185

- - 3,219 . 33,483 382,286
. . 171,631 . 6,021 318,900
§ 174,850 $ 30,474 § 701,156
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

CONSOLIDATED REVENUES
Far e year ended Cecemiver 31. 2010

SCHEDULE 7

oo -

Taxss
Proporty taxes
Specid assessments
Grants in lieu of Taxes
Penalty and intenast on taxes
Collection for other authorities
Province of BGC - School Taxes

Regiond District of Central Kootenay

Ragiona Hospital Districts
B.C. Assessment Authority
kunicipal Finance Authority

Payments to other authorities

$ 74160938 7,007,655

97,730 98,721
647,724 535,201
87,132 94,258

8,630,011 8,391,987
3,284,381 3.101.831

364,165 384,727
170,286 155,179
416 381

20,697,837 19,839,960

{12,449,268) {(12.014.125)

$ 814857898 78254835

Sals of Services
Services provided other gewemments
General govemment
Protect ke services
Transpotation services
Vaste Collection Fees
Public health sewrices
Civic Cantre
Tenth Stmet campus
Recneation & Cultural sevices
Youth Gentre
Other Revenues
Melson Municipal Library
Eliminations (intemal nevanuss)

§ 4124028 352950

64,067 72,941
708,830 473,117
520,092 511,135
268,126 228,404

46,073 49,779

36,067 35.883
352,640 336,289

41,866 39,295

38,207 35.809

24,066 47.844

60,662 61.176
{15.833) (15.833)

$§ 2,647,2238% 2228858

Otherrévanues from own EOUrces
Licences and pemits
Finss
Rentals
Lease chamges
Miseslaneous nsanue
Eliminations {intemal rwanues)

$ 442,931 % 392,900

188,177 140,327
1,630,073 1,495,209
TeR1A7T 721,206
348,729 368,220

HA96,664)  (807.040)

2,172,633 2,220,012

VWater utlty senicas
Conneclion changes 97,732 81,086
Hydrant rentals 32,640 32,640
Penaltios 28,987 23,734
MFA cash deposits 4186 -
168,766 137,460
Sewer wility services
Cormection changes 23,761 60,522
Panaltias 26,677 22310
Cther ecovaries - 6,140
WMFA cash deposits 536 -
120,973 88,972
Melson Hydmo utility sewices
Cormection changes 141,664 140,442
Cther revanue 239,307 222 682
380,961 363124
Transit advertising 4172 2.280
Melson kunicipal Lbrary 168,119 49,631
162,201 51,911

$§ 29965613§ 2.861.479
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CONSOLIDATED REVENUES
For the yzar ended Cecember 31. 2010

THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

SCHEDULE 7

© 2010 T 2008

Investment Income

interest temm deposits and misc
Interest samed on resenes

$ 4798735  485.704
324,519 532,004

$ 804,3925 1,017,708

Grants - unconditlonal
Province ¢ BC revenue sharing grant
Traffic fine sharing grant
Province o' 8C Ubrary grant
Federal grant - Library
Misc grants - Lbrary

$ 449,828 5 449,827

205,693 207.988

31,802 3,754

1,440 5,028
14,378 -

$ 703,141 S 894,805

@Grants - conditlonal
Youth Centre grants
Yietin Sendces grants
Other misc grants
RDCK sports field transfer
General Infrastructure grants
8C Transit agreemsent
Water Infrestructure grant
Sewer Infrastructure grant

Library grants

$ 207,820 S 213,735

70,900 77.889
741,621 136,473
140,105 140,105
176,678 100,000
676,429 842,931
354,720 812,308
145,000 847,808
282,289 100,784

$ 27955625 2892083

Water User Fees
Sewer User Fees
Transit User Fees
Melson Hydro Sales

2,410,327 2.182,270
2,219,661 2,027,983
270,281 295,616
12,670,132 12,302,435

$ 17,570,401 S 16,808,304

Galn on sale oftmgblo capital assets

$ 211,488 -

Total Revenues

$ 35,777,299 S 34,328,829
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

CONSOLIDATED EXPENSES SCHEDULE
Far the year ended December 31. 2010
2010 2008

Goneral Governmeant
Legislative $ 236,160 % 216,566
Administrative services 942,746 774,490
Financial management 507,685 438,535
Legal fess 28,607 28,704
Audit fees 20,910 17.000
Purchasing 236,121 201,120
Plenning senices 587,937 376,077
Data processing 138,700 259,843
Buildings 69,045 25 354
Insurance claims 37,887 33,930
Chamber of Commen: e grant 76,000 76,000
Other community donations 207,208 41,760
Liability insurance 68,987 73,6835
Other comorate senvices 316,719 161,166
Amontization 1,600,642 1,655,148
Eliminations {intemeal ¢charges) {4,198} {921)

§ 65072136 % 4378407

Protective Services

Police protection $ 3,273,048 § 3,031,935
Fira protection 1,600,064 1,425,370
Victim senvices 101,866 106,889
By-law enforcam et 23,491 23,035
Emengency measumns 227,727 37,074
Building inspection 210,910 190,050
Animal contnol 67,263 58,932
Amortization 136,260 134,618
Eliminations {intemal ¢harges) {(179,302) (109,312)

$ ©5481,3086 3% 4898531

Transportation Services

Administration $ 478,069 % 435,959
Enginesring 64,332 53,381
Equipment and supplies 38,224 50,483
Building and yard maintenancs 228,343 206,740
Roadway surfaces 366,106 350,904
Snow & ice rmmoval 416,260 735,717
Bridges, handrails, retaining walls 46,000 35,820
Sidewalks 191,976 209,105
Strest lighting 124,734 130,804
Traffic sarvices 99,023 86,847
Stomm drainage 138,820 89,109
Strest cleaning 280,169 299,689
Parking 219,636 204,352
Airtranspont 54,416 40,631
Wharf and weat her station 9,182 22,77
Amuortization 899,706 593,961
Eliminations {intemal ¢harges) (482,902) (343,926)

$ 3,160,871 % 3,201,743

Environmental Health Services

Waste collection and disposal § 241,101 230,581
Amortization 16,875 257,548
Eliminations {intemeal ¢harges) [36.,814) (18,286)

$ 221,162 § 469,843

Public Health and Welfare Services
Cemetery and mausoleum operation $ 215,421 % 192 124
Eliminations {intemal ¢harges) {18,441) (11,021)
$ 186,980 % 181,103
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

CONSOLIDATED EXFENSES SCHEDULE 8
For i year sndsd Oscembar 31. 2010 _
2010 2000
Recreation and Cultural S8ervices
Adminlstration ] 78,486 S 88,521
Sparts councll grant 66,000 55,000
ROCK grant community comples 102,200 102,200
Community halls 10,831 11,648
Skating rinks and anena 96,208 104,429
Parks and playgrounds 820,144 719120
fuseum 211,108 211,50
¥ outh Cenine 328,811 355,855
Capital Thealne 2,830 59,970
Unkersky Campus 846 3,203
Melson Kuniclpal Library 823,407 580,978
Amortization 142,418 210,760
Elminations {Intemal charges) {118,834) {78,667
§ 294005 24330
Interast and other debt services § 1,402,8815 1 512357
Water utllity operations
Administration $ 202,833 ¢ 3. 087
Purification and meatment 111,881 119,112
Sendce of supply 81,880 93,591
Transmission and distribution 336,032 308,751
Customer bllling and callection 79,024 63,566
Amortization Ger,eee 555,090
Elminations {Intemal changes) 68, 62

T416,0205 1.65.878

Sewor utllity operations

Administration § 4140888 405699
Collection system 273, 230,501
LIt Stations 77,8607 9.2
Treaiment and dispasal 11,878 520,219
Customer blling and callection 73,028 69,018
Amortization 483,874 458,297
Elminations {Intemal changes) {70,893) 48,

{48,859)
§ 10084,8835 1.727.499

MNslson Hydro opsrations

Ackninlslrallon § 990,274 & 900,892
ROCK grant community comples 20,000 90,000
Plant maintenance 410,441 388,831
Power purchases 6,024,838 4,830,500
Transmission and distribution 1,184,102 1,523,507
Customer bllling and collecton 877, 7H 619,691
Amortization 678,217 561,347

Elminations {Intemal changes) {238, T1E) {209,194)
¢ B,078,088S 5785583

Transt utllity opsrations

Adminisiratdon § 190,883 & 188,913
Openations 1,087,707 1,005,395
Customer bllling and calocdon 9,424 7. 082
Elminations {Intemal charges) {10, 8&2) £10.000)

[] 1,288,128 $ 1.171.870

Loss on disposal of tangible caplital asssts ] - § 416,805
Total Expsness § 31,177,889 § 30 500,855
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

SUKMMARY OF EXPENSES BY OBJECT SCHEDULE @
For e year sndsd Oscamser 31, 2010
2010 2000

Goneral Opemiing Fund
Labour and benelits $ $,042.336% 8,050,034
iatarials ard suppllxs 886,084 805,083
Equipment 1,162,880 1,144 70
Lklkies 208,688 311,583
Profess lonal services and Msumames 365 268 31,159
Cortracted sandees 1,708,080 1,231,037
Grants 642,206 522 424
Wiscellaneous 184,808 246,624
bt Inkbenest and fiszal senices 680,147 T2.281
Logs on disposa of :angble cepha assels - 331.851
Amontization 2.002.001 2,018,138

Amortization for assats urcier caplal lease

233,807 33,887
§ 17,927,188 § 16,578,121

Watsr Operaing Fund
Labour and benelits ] d26463 8 571.8%
Waterials and supplies 180,133 123.075
Cquipment 60,755 64,776
Utlitles 14,678 16,842
Professlonal services and msuremee 10.402 75,423
Comtrected sendces 108,858 107.451
inodlemoous 6,703 1,060
Dbl nlwiesl il Mycal swivices 60.668 535,009
Loss on dispasa of TGA's - 68,528
Amortlzation 8§87 .580 556,000
$ 1833017 ¢ 1.630.104
Sower Operating Fund
Labour and benelits $ 182373 ¢ TARTET
ilaterials ard supplles 208,100 193,818
Equipment 116,604 122 489
Utlkles 60,840 57.247
Profess lonal services and Msumames 114107 74,557
Cortracted sandces 166,703 117.133
Wiscellaneous 2068 7.087
Cabt Inbenast and fiszal senices 63.406 59.671
Loss on dispasa of TGA's - 2517
Amortlzation 483 874 458,207
§ 19080828 1838543
Helson Hydro Qperaling Funed
Labour and benelts § 160008888 1.710,003
aterials end supplies 388,008 383,053
Equipment 212,817 218.579
Utlitles 23 487 14,203
Profess oral services and hsurancs 219,900 220,085
Uontracted sanices 695,004 911,450
Poveer Purchases 5,014,682  4.850.500
Miseallananis 24 810 1R
Gramito 97,733 00,600
Cabt Inbenast and fiszal senices 698,540 687,337
Loss on dispasa of TGA's - 13,900
Amortization 578,217 561.347

§ 9.6109841% 9,606,023
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON

SUMMARY OF EXPENSES BY OBJECT SCHEDULE 9
For the year ended Decomber 31, 2010
2010 2009

Transit Operating Fund
Labour and benefits $ 756,723 % 711,084
faterials and supplies 76,343 80,051
Equipment 168,275 128,008
Professional serices and insurance 16,801 9,813
Contracted senices 275,191 248,531
Miscellaneous 3,451 3,305

$ 1,206,784 § 1,181,870

Other Confrolled Entities
Nelson Municipal Library

$ 623407 % 580,970

Eliminations

$ (1,212,387) §  {913,782)

Total Expenses

$ 31,177,809 $ 30,800,855

Conesolidated Tofal
Labour and Beneiits
taterials and supplies
Equipment
Utilities
Professional senices and insurance
Contracted services
Power Purchases
Grants
Miscellaneous
Debt interest and fiscal senices
Loss on disposal of TCA's
Amortization
Amortization for assets under capital lease
Nelson Municipal Library
Eliminations

$ 12,367,460 § 11,797,769
1,678,756 1,845,580
1,711,441 1,677,550

307,201 399,875
735,048 687,737
3,043,716 2,615,588
5,014,582 4,850,509
739,038 613,114
232,738 289,167
1,402,661 1,512,388
. 418,805
4,209,651 4,193,872
233,807 233,897
623,407 580,676
(1,212,387)  {813,782)

Total Expenses

$ 31,177,899 § 30,800,855

2010 ANNUAL REPORT City of Nelson 67






2010 ANNUAL REPORT City of Nelson 69



Statistical Section

2010 Property Tax Exemptions (PTE)

Through the adoption of an annual bylaw, the Munlclpal Councll provdes a premisshe exemption from

municlpal taxation to certaln groups and organizations, which are evaluated and chosen at the dacretion of
Councll. Thelegal capachy to provide these permissive tax exemptlons Is through powers granted tothe

Councll In the Communlty Charter.

To be consldered for @ permissive tax exemption, an organization must: submit an application; have goals,
policles, and operating principles that reflect those of the municlpallty; provdde serdces that are an extension of
muncipal serdces and programs that are deemad to contribute to the well belng of the community. They

must be primardly used by residents of the City of Melson and allow all Melson resldents to participate and
adhere to all Clty of Melson bylaws and policles. VWhen granting a FTE, Councll ensures that the exemptlon will
not prodde an unfalr competlthe advantage and that the resulting tax bunden Is a Justifiable expense.

Below |2 a listing of orgenizations granted a FTE In 2010 together with the estimated amount of municipal
tawes that would have been Imposed on the property If It were not considered exempt.

Estimated
Organization Civic Address Permissive Tax Exemption Municipal
n Taxes 2011
100% Land and

Ascension Lutheran Church 1805 Silver King Rd Improvements not manditory 703.26
Pantecostal Assamblies of Canada 523 Gondon Rd 1007% land 32821
Pentecostal Assemblies of Canada 1004 Third Street 100% land 328.21
Pantacostsl Assambllies of Canads 1004 Thind Sireat 10096 land 2821
The Salvation Army 601 Vernon St 33% building and 100% land 1,140.50
Hootenay Christian Fallowship 512 Stanley St 1007 land 2922
Heos Centre Ministries 711 Tenth St 33% land 136.94
LDS Lattsr Day Salnte Church 222 W. Richards 759% land 73137
Evangelical Lutheran 300 Silica St 100% 41117
Nslson Unitad Church B2 Sllica St 1% 17793
Synod Diocese of Kootenay |?23 Ward St 100% 251.07
Synod Diocsss of Kooternay |5m Carbonata St 1% 15525
Evangelical Covenant Church |702 Stanley St 100% 140.45
Catholle Public Schools 523 M S 1% S27 60
Roman Catholic Church 813 Ward St 100% 28381
Chrigian Sclsncs Soc. 237 Balter St 1% 601
First Presbyterian 602 Kootenay St. 100% 19212
Firet Bapt st Chureh 611 Fifth St 1009 3B7.50
Jehovah's Witness 2121 Falls St 100% 600.38
Naslson & Dislrict Boy Scouts 310 Cadar St 1% 2 61
Nelson Curling Club 302 Cedar St 100% 12,187 .52
Nelson Golf & Recreation Socisty 1123 ¥W. Richands St $3% land and buliding 16,73216
Nelson Rod & Gun Society 801 Railway St 100% 2,141.35
Nelson Carss Soclsty 6T YWard St 5% land and bullkding 2302 64
MNelson and District Housing Society |805 Nelson Ave 100% 3,088.25
Kooteany Advocacy Network | MNelson Ao 100% 1,935.07
We st Kootenay Women's Assoc. |420 Mill St 100% 1,105.13
Nelson Klwanis Soclety 524 Sixth Sinest 100% 3,644 30
Nelson Kiwanis Society 509 Gordon Road 100% 218623
Kootenay Kids Soclety 2 Sliica St 100% 3,14066
Nelson & District Museum 502 Vemnon St 100% 19,049.87
Capiltol Theatres Restoration Socley 421 Viectorla St 100% 1078810
Total 86016.14
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The Corporation of the City of Nelson
General Comparative Statistics
As At December 31, 2010

MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENT:
1 Mayor and 6 Council Members
INCORPORATED MARCH 18, 1897

| 2010 2009 | 2008 | 2007 | 2006 | 2005 | 2004 | 2003 [ 2002 |

Population 9,923 9,923 9,923 9,914 9,258 9,797 9,784 9,290 9,571
Registered Voters 5,793 6,034 7,040 5,828 5926 5,240 7,833 7,593 7,141
Area (HA) 1,602 1,602 1,347 1,347 1,347 1,347 1,347 1,347 911
No. Of Properties (Folios) 4668 4,474 4,543 4,316 4,250 4,398 4,255 4,241 4,210
DESIGNATED LAND USE IN HA:
Residential 308 308.1 294.0 294.0 294.0 294.0 294.0 294.0 294.0
Agricultural 0 0.0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00
Commercial 287 287 287 287 287 28.7 287 287 287
Industry 655 655 784 784 784 784 784 784 784
Schools/Park/Greenbelt 124 123.8 1124 1194 1194 1194 1194 119.4 1194
Institutional 415 415 427 427 427 427 427 427 427
Transportation / Utilities 8621 620.7 620.7 620.7 620.7 620.7 620.7 620.7 184.7
Crown Land 1863 163.1 163.1 163.1 163.1 163.1 163.1 1683.1 163.1
ROADS IN KM.:
Paved T35 73.5* 85.0 840 840 840 840 840 790
Unpaved 210 210 210 240 24.0 240 240 240 21.0
SEWER LINES in KM ..
Sanitary 80.0* 79.0* 78.0 720 7.0 790 79.0 V9.0 78.0
Storm 557 56.0* 560 410 410 410 410 41.0 41.0
WATER LINES In KM . 87.6* 855* 87.0 7T87F 787 787 T87 787 T8Y
# Water Services 4,092 3,964 3,972 3,972 3,840 3,840 3,784 3,743 3,708
# Hydrants 326 324 316 312 300 295 284 280 280
PARKS AREA (In HA):
Municipal 30 30 16 16 16 16 16 16 16
NUMBER OF SCHOOLS:
Vocational 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Colleges 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Elementary Schools 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 5
Senior Secondary Schools 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Middle Schools 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Private Schools 3 3 3 3 3 2 2 2 2
District Correspondence School 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

School Total Enrollment {Dec 31)
(axiuding vocaiionel and colleges) 1,701 1,803 1,848 1,647 2,050 1,743 1,903 1,856 1,844

*figures adjusted In 2009 to match TCA Information

2010 ANNUAL REPORT City of Nelson

71



THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF NELSON
Major Projects Program
2011 - 2015

MAJOR PROJECTS:
Information Senices
City Owned Facilities/Buildings
Protective Senvices
Transportation Sevices
Recreation & Cultural Senices
Equipment
Garbon Neutral Operating Projects
Utilities

Waler

Sewer

Nelson Hydro

SOURCE OF FUNDS:
Parcel Taxes

Water Rates

Sewer Rates

Nelson Hydro Rates
Utility Resenes

Other Resenes

Reserve Accounts and Other
Govemment Granis
Community Works Grants
Gomowing

2011
§
241,550
932,391
21,500
1,204,000
328,910
969,000
164,860

2,440,000
1,120,000
2,737,964
8,928,295

50,000
1,677,810
823,846
79,000
37,778
2,372,622
160,000
954,964
280,146
3,386,129
8,928,285

2012~ 2013
3 ]
249,000 334,000
weeei0  1246%0
70,000 115400
1,021,184 938,041
220,000 200,000
370,000 500,000
76500 84,750

1,770,000 2,080,000
862,000 1,548,763
3,667,547 2,008,536
9,396,801 7,944,140

1,520,000 2.080,000
662,000 956,660
425,92 9,536

3,441,624 340,103

2,000,685 1,906,191
160,000 185,000

250,000 -
247,000 318,000
580,858 2.171,8%0

9,396,891 7,944,140

2014

]
134,000
15,000

926,660

375.000
£3.000

2015
]
119,000
170,000
40,000
828,180

560,000
66,250

1,750,000 2,150,000

866.9¢2 1
1,568.8¢5 1

5,717,147 6,

1,750,000 2,
86,942 1,

653,232

813,713
1,268,660 1

160.000

235,000
850,000

9,717,147 6,

SR A e

,504,332
,228,788
798,550

150,000
171,564
860,651
601,905
,900,430
165,000

40,000
200,000
798,550

_________
.....
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The Corporation of the City of Nelson

Summary of Long Term Debt
{Iln $000's)
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
Total Debt ($ 000's) $ 18324 § 19440 § 18245 § 19369 § 20598
Supported By:
Selkirk College Lease 4,427 4,638 4828 5,013 b,168
Property Tax 893 940 1,174 1,545 2,209
Water Utilities 1,168 1,215 228 240 101
Sewer Utilities 954 1,015 557 597 835
Nelson Hydro 3,628 4245 3,283 3796 4284
Gas Franchise Lease Revenues 7424 7,366 8,172 8178 8,179
Debt Service Payments ($000's) § 20§ 231 0§ 232 0§ 2818 § 2510
Supported By:
Long term lease 341 403.0 5186 519.6 5196
Property Tax 314 3101 4853 835.2 806.0
Water Rates 108.1 b78 238 104.9 122.1
Sewer Rates 113.3 89.0 72.0 72.0 238
Nelson Hydro Rates 1,022.8 8408 868.8 808.8 808.8
Gas Franchise Lease Revenue 1534 912.0 3423 387.8 339 4
Total Revenues ($000's) $ 21§ M8 § 32635 § 30000 § 30521
Long Term Debtas a
Percentage of Total Revenue 581% 8.78% 1.12% 9.39% 8.22%
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THE GORPORA TION OF THE GITY OF NEL SON
2010 Property Assessments and Tax Rates

By Proparty Class
Light Business Recreational Boundary
Residential Utliitles Industry Other Non-Profit Expanglon
Analysis of 2010
Taxable Yalues
Assessment for General Puiposes 1,208,312,800 2,938,680 1,484,700 17E,868,000 1,499,000 84,684,700
Percentage of Taxable Yalies 81.52% 0.20% 0.10% 11.68% 0.10% 3.20%
Generdl Tax Lawy by Class § 4747323 § 86618 § 10817 § 1730,208 § 6,080 § 376,938
Pencentage of General Taxalion 58.25% 1.23% 0.15% 24.68% 0.07% 541%
Analysls of 2010 Rates
{Per £1,000)

General 53935 $29.1219 §7.0837 $9.8308 $3.3807 $4.1000
Dbt 0.1893 1.2550 03053 04240 0.1452
School 25212 14.4000 5.8000 5.8000 3.5000 14.4000
Central Koolenay Regional Hospital 0.0357 0.1250 01214 0.0875 0.0357 0.1250
West Koolenay Boundary Regional Hospital 0.1487 0.5135 0.4988 0.3594 0.1487 0.5135
Regional Dislrict of Geniral Kootenay 1.4959 52357 5.0881 38850 1.4959 52357
B.G. Assessment Authority 0.0384 0.5051 0.1987 0.1987 0.0384 0.5051
idumicipal Finance Autharity 0.0002 0.0007 0.0007 0.0003 0.0002 0.0007

38.3711 351.1589 520.0947 321.3737 38.7588 524.8800
Spedfied Area - Norh Shore 0.1814 03285
Paolice Tax - Area E 04045
Police Tax - Area F 04180
Police Tax - AreaH 0.5581
HOTE:

Propeities are categonized ink 9 different dasses
lor assessment and tazalion puposes.
The Gity of Helson has no properties within class

4 {iajer Indusky). 7 {(Managed ForestLand) and 9 {Faim).
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Assessment/Taxation Comparative Statisfics

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Assessment for Gensral Taxation
Land § 6029208152 § 599213102 § 591137800 § 488923500 § 309244350
Less: Exempt Land 72992421 67.619.831 67.093.002 58 550402 41,492 216
MNet Land Assessment 52991573 531,593,271 24 044798 430373098 267 752134
Improvements 1,302,573 102 1216535202  1.201.817.800  1.080,083150 989,772 700
Less: Exempt Imp & Ltils 345.234179 339.952.519 3.017.248 327.383648 312423439
Met Improvement Assess 857.336.923 B76.552 683 860 800,552 762800502 B77.349.261
Total Taxable Assessment $ 1487254654 § 1.408.175954 5 1.3854 845350 $£1.193072600 $ 945101395
Asgsssment for School Taxation
Total Taxable Asssssment $ 16827449054 $§ 1603877954 51580547350 % 1,384 462600 $1.131.765335
Municipal Tax Retes (per $1,000)
Residential 5 41050 $ 41780 3 40719 % 45443 S 56526
Liiliies 5 303760 § 300267 & 014417 3% 28680 320234
Industrial L 73890 § 108846 3 10.6082 % 112081 § 12.8513
Business 3 102626 $ 108846 3 106082 % M2581 § 12.8513
Seasonal 3 35139 % 34803 % 33912 % 35223 % 43609
Boundary expansion area 5 41000 $ 41600 3 41200 % 41200 $ 41200
School Tax Rate (per $1,000)
Residential s 25212 § 268057 8 25545 8 22011 & 38247
Liilities § 144000 § 145000 35 142000 % 14.7000 § 14.9000
Industrial L3 68000 % 70000 % 58000 % 790000 S 9.2000
Business ] 6.8000 $ 7.0000 $ 68000 % 72000 § 9.2000
Seasonal 5 35000 $ 37000 3 36000 S 38000 $ 4.2000
Resldential Tax Rate (per $1.000)
General 8 39354 § 40054 % 39033 % 43430 S 5.3804
Debt 3 01696 $ 01726 S 016887 $ 02013 § 0.2722
Local School Leww s 25212 & 26057 3 25545 % 29911 & 38247
Regional Hospital L3 01824 $ 01930 % 03305 % 04123 § 0.4932
Regional District 3 14959 $ 14911 3§ 1.3270 % 15244 § 1.8085
Specified Area L3 01814 $ 01639 % 0.1587 ¢ 01885 S 0.2535
Kunicipal Finance Authority $ Qo002 $ 00002 $ 00002 $ 00003 $ 0.0003
B. C. Assessment Authority ] 00664 S 00641 3 00815 % 00577 S 0.0816
§ 85525 § SF0B0 8 BE04d4 £ 07286 & 121145
GCollection & Ponalty
Curr ¥rs Lavy & Ponaltios {incl 80c363) & 10888245 $§ 15H0945 & 16879957 § 16334120 § 1504502
Per Gapita ] 196182 $§ 190577 & 166249 § 168093 & 194945
Cuirent Recaiad $ 19881196 % 18804481 £ 1B215740 § 1B16B970 § 17686618
Poancant of Lawy TITR TA1% 9r51% TA10% DTN
Araars/ Dding. Colleciad s 23535 & HieM S 224999 $ 4647 35 438317
Total Colkechad § 1984751 § 19240302 & 16440730 § 16505456 § 1510493
Pencent of Gurment Lewy 101.47% 101.56% 96.72% 101.45% 100.532%
Tolal Arears Outslandng s 524300 % 428008 % 447116 $ 4432 % 508927
Taxation Revenuess [Municipal)
Residential ] 4747322 § 4456229 § 437754 § 4348755 § 4133942
Uiias s B5518 S 78055 % je2s2 $ 77138 % 729851
Light Indusirial 5 10517 S 092 S 0oEs S 97H0 S 1519
Business s 1,730295 § 1620279 3§ 1634478 $§ 1640519 & 1,571,796
Seasonal ] 5040 § 4599 § 37357 3§ 3088 S 3400
Boundary expansion anea ] ITT497T S ek § 748640 § 1757 & 337965
$ 695619 $ 6551185 § G6B476816 $§ 6430783 $ 6143603
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Municipal Taxes 2010

Seasonal Boundary
0% expansion area
6%

Light
Industrial
0%

Utilities
1%
Taxes Collected 2006—2010
| 2010 | 2009 | 2008 | 2007 | 2006 |
Municipal taxes 8,148,579 7825835 7,549,404 7,220,945 6,632,013
School taxes 8,630,011 8,391,987 8,157,884 8,127,941 7,992,349
Regional District Central Kootenay 3,284,381 3,101,851 2,714,480 2,764,421 2,778,782
Regional Hospital Boards 364,165 364,670 617,283 677,875 669,596
Assessment Authority & MFA 170,701 155,558 148,276 142,981 139,390
Taxes Collected 2006 - 2010
25,000,000
mAssessment
Authority & MFA
20,000,000 A
u Regional
. . . Hospital Boards
15,000,000 4 — . .
» Regional District
Central
1 Kootenay
10,000,000 B School taxes
5,000,000 4 B Municipal taxes
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
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CITY OF NELSON

2010 Operating Revenues

TAXES 7,600,855
GRANT-IN-LIEU OF TAXES 547,724
SALE OF SERVICES 2,547,223
OTHER REVENUE FRON OWN SOURCES 2,986,513
GRANTS - UNCONDITIONAL 703,141
GRANTS - CONDITIONAL 2,795,562
INVESTMENT INCOME/SALE OF ASSETS 1,015,880
WATER USER FEES 2,410,327
SEWER USER FEES 2,219,661
TRANSIT FEES 270,281
NELEON HYDRO SALES 12,670,132

38,777,200

2010 Operating Revenues

TAXES

NELSON HYDRO 21%

SALES
35%

GRANT-I N-
U OF TAXES
2%

SALE OF SERVICES
7%

OTHER REVENUE

TRANSIT FEES EriORA DM

1% SOURCES

GRANTS - 8%

SEWER USER FEES JVATER ;J;ER i UNCONDITIONAL

6% INVESTMENT CRARITS. - >0

INCOME/SALE OF coNDITIONAL
ASSETS Sl
3%
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2010 Operating Expenses

General Government 5,072,135
Protective senices 5,461,308
Transportation senices 3,160,871
Emvironmental health senices 221,162
FPublic health and welfare senices 186,980
Recreation and cultural senices 2,419,400
Interest and other debt charges 1,402,661
Water utility ope-ations 1,415,820
Sewer utility operations 1,864,853
Nelson Hydro oparaticns & 676,686
Translt utllity opsrations 1,288,125

31,177,809

2010 Operating Expenses

Transitutility
operations

A9 General
Government

16%

Nelson Hydro

operations
28% _\

Sewer utility

operations Transportation
6% bi services
Public
g 10%
Water u_uhty health and Envi -
nvironmen
operations ) el e ;
594 Recreation and : health services
culturalservices *€"V'C®S 1%
Interest and other 1%

8%
debt charges

4%

2010 ANNUAL REPORT City of Nelson

78



CITY OF NELSON SUMMARY OF EXPENSES BY OBJECT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

General Water Sewer Nelson Hydro Transit Library Total
Labourand benefits (LAB) 8642336 520463 782373 1650565 756723 493449 12860909
Power purchases (POWER) 5,014 582 5,014 582
Equipment (EQ) 1152800 60755 116604 212617 168275 6826 1,717 967
Malerials and supplies (SUP) 836,084 150,133 208,190 388006 76343 39630 1718386
Debtinterest and fiscal sevices (DEBT) 580,147 60568 63406 698,540 1,402 661
Contracted services (CONT) 1708960 106858 166,703 606,004 275191 5833 3,102,047
Professional services and insurance (SE 385268 19402 114197 219380 16801 34868 738916
Miscellaneois (MISC) 1G4 ANG 6. 703 7 9A5 MMEID 3451 232 138
Utilities (UTIL) 28508 14576 60640 23 487 21,303 418,594
Grants (GR) 642205 97.733 739,938
Amortization (AM) 2,795,098 287509 483874 76,217 4443 548
Eliminations 1,212 387 (1212 387)
16,114,798 1,533,017 1,998,952 9610941 1,296,784 623,407 31,177,899
Expenses by Object
GR
29
UTIL
1%
MISC - TAaM
1% 14%
SERV_——
2% cont
10%
3
INT“ )
4% SUp
5% EQ
5%
o LAB mPOWER OEQ BSUP
SINT 8CONT BSERV oMISC
BUTIL aGR OoAM
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The Corporation of the City of Nelson
Demographic Statistics
Based on Census Figures

Total Population By Sex

2006 2006 Male,
Female, 48%

52%

Population by Sex and Age
Group
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